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Crystallex

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS:.

On February 1, 2007, i returned to Crystailex with my
appointment as President, Chief Executive Officer and
Director. Having served as a Director of Crystallex from
2000 to 2002, | was very familiar with the Company
and their plans in Venezuela.

Promptly, the Company focused on several initiatives
for 2007. These were some of the priorities:

* Prepare for the transition into the construction
phase at Las Cristinas.

¢ Advance the permitting process for Las Cristinas.

* Advance our Corporate and Social Responsibility
Programs in the areas around Las Cristinas.

» Strengthen the management tearn in both financial
reporting and operational management.

* Appoint new financial auditors.

Gorden M. Thompson
President and Chief Executive Officer

ANNUAL REPORT 2007
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ACTION PLANS

What we cid in 2007

Complete environmental
permitting phase for
Las Cristinas

Launch project
construction phase for
Las Cristinas

initiate Phase 2 of social
investment plan for
Las Cristinas

v Initiate drill program at
Las Cristinas

Complete financing for
Las Cristinas

Continue gold exploration
of the Lo Increible Project

Extend the life of Tomi
open pit operation

Received the EIS approval - the final external
input required by MinAmb in the Environmental
permitting process.

MinAmb Environmental Permit (the only
remaining permit required for the construction
phase} still pending.

Continued Corporate Responsibility programs in
local communities around our projects.

Completed a 13,500-metre drill program at Las
Cristinas in February 2007,

Completed financing to improve the Company's
working capital.

Explored and evaluated a significant gold target
in the Lo Increible Belt with a 3,13 1-metre drill
program. Continued with basic exploration of
secondary targets in the same Beit.

Extended the life of Tomi open pit operations.
A 6,214-metre exploration drilling program
was completed.

MINERAL RESERVES AND RESOURCES

Mineral Reserves

December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006

Crystallex's Share .

Gold QOunces of Gold Qunces of
Tonnes Grade Gold Tonnes Grade Gold
(000} (gt}  Contained {000) (g/t}  Contained

Las Cristinas )

3

. Proven Reserves . 112,761 1.24 4,483,000 ' 50,613 1.25 2,031,000
Probable Reserves 351,601 110 12,379,000 327,833 1.14 11,975,000
Total Gold Reserves 464,362 1.13 16,862,000 } 378,446 1.15 14,006,000

Minesal reserves are based on a US$550 per ounce gold price and cut-off grades ranging fram 0.33 grams per tonre 10
0.57 grams of gold per tonne depending an the mineral type.

Please refer to page 64 for full information an the Mineral Reserves and Resources.



What we plan to do in

2008

T T, D AT

Complete environmental
permitting phase for
Las Cristinas

Launch broject
construction phase for
Las Cristinas

initiate Phase 2 of social
investment plan for Las
Cristinas

Evaluate various
expansion opportunities
at the El Callao
operations

Secure financing for the
development phase of
Las Cristinas
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Continue to work with Officials and local
communities.

Commence construction at site upon receiving
the pending MinAmb Permit.

Upon receiving the MinAmb Permit, initiate the
comprehensive plan designed by a Venezuelan
NGO for the long-term benefit of the local
communities, building upon the social programs
already put in place by Crystallex.

Complete construction of the new Medical
Centre in the neighbouring Las Claritas, Nuevas
Claritas and Santo Domingo communities.
Complete construction of a sewage treatment
plant to serve the local communities.

Complete drill programs and the evaluation of
surface and underground drill results, with the
aim of converting resources into mineable
reserves.

After receiving the permit, seek the appropriate
financing package for Las Cristinas, representing
the most competitive mix of capital sources.

Mineral Resources

Cr-ystaliex'.s fr{are '

December 31, 2007

December 31, 2006

i
. Gold  Ounces of ; Gold  Ounces of
| Tonnes Grade Gold : Tonnes Grade Gold
! {000) {g/t) Contained i (000} (gt}  Contained
[l - - - I - N o
1 Las Cristinas ;
' Measured & Indicated 629,383 1.03 20,761,000 ' 500,657 1.1 17,661,000
., Tomi (underground mine) '
! Indicated Respurces ! - - - 13 18.3 8,000
La Victoria
Indicated Resources 2,422 4.5 349,000 2,422 4.5 349,000
' 1.03 503,092 1.1 18,018,000

Total Gold Resourcas

631,805
.

21,110,000



WE ADVANCED
CORPORATE AND
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
PROGRAMS.

In our 16 plus years of operating in
Venezuela, we have taken our corporate
and social responsibility very seriously.
Our community contributions exceed
our contractual obligations governed by
the Las Cristinas contract. In 2007, we
continued working closely with local
communities and advanced several
programs to help improve their quality
of life.

Medical Clinic

One of the larger projects we have
undertaken is the construction of

a new medical clinic in Las Claritas.
Construction of the facility began in
August 2007 with a targeted completion
date of the fourth quarter 2008. This
new facility will be a larger and better
equipped clinic than the existing facility.

Sewage Treatment Plant

The Company launched the construction
of a sewage treatment plant that will
handle the sewage needs for the local
communities using an existing sewage
network installed previously by
Crystallex. The plant is scheduled

for completion in 2008.

School and Community Groups

As well as continuing community
scholarship programs, the Company
made a number of donations of materials
and food supplies to the local school and
community groups including supplies for
a new school roof and a new [unch room.

MANAGEMENT IS
STRONGER THAN EVER.

in April, the Company was pleased to
announce the appointment of Hemdat

Sawh as Crystallex Chief Financial
Officer, and William Faust as Chief
Qperating Officer and Senior Vice
President. The Las Cristinas project
team also welcomes Jose Diaz Daza as
General Manager and James McMullan
as Construction Manager. Please learn
more about them on the back.

WE ARE CONFIDENT.

The Company can say with confidence
that throughout 2007 we experienced
continuing support for the Las Cristinas
Project from all levels of the Venezuelan
government and from local communities,

From the MinAmb correspondence in
June, to the National Assembly hearings
and report in October, to the numerous
meetings with senior Government
Officials through year end - all of this
activity confirms our belief that issuance
of the permit is just a matter of time.

We continue to do everything we can
to bring closure to this chapter of the
Las Cristinas story s0 we can move
into the much anticipated
construction phase.

I want thank all the Board members,
Crystallex employees and advisors for
their efforts, We are grateful for the
continued support of our suppliers, local
stakeholders and our shareholders new
and old,

While 2007 had its challenges, we
made significant progress advancing
Las Cristinas. We are excited about the
pending construction and subsequent
operating phase of this world class
deposit.

e m——————
~ - ":—:::;:'_— -\)
<’ it ey

Gordon M. Thompson
President and Chief Executive Officer




PROJECTED COSTS ARE
BELOW INDUSTRY
AVERAGE.

Operating Costs

The new gold reserve estimate for Las
Cristinas is based on an updated estimate
of operating costs completed by SNC-
Lavalin in the third quarter of 2007.

The average total cash operating costs
(including royalties) for Las Cristinas are
now estimated at US$346 per ounce
over the life of the mine and US$258
per ounce during the first five years of
the project.

The increase in operating costs since

our fast published estimate in 2005

is attributable, in part, to the general
worldwide increase in commodity prices -
specifically cyanide, steel, tires, mill liners,
drill steel and blasting agents — and from
higher labour rates.

One of the great benefits of the

Las Cristinas location is that costs to

date have not been significantly impacted
by energy costs, reflecting Venezuela’s
very low and stable prices for fuel and
electricity, Relatively inexpensive energy
should ensure that Las Cristinas remains
cost competitive on a global basis,
particularly in the early years of

the project.

o
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Capital Costs

Also in third quarter of 2007, SNC-Lavalin
completed an updated estimate of capital
costs for the construction of Las Cristinas.

Capital costs are now estimated at
US$356 million, up from the August
2005 estimate of US$293 million.

The new estimate includes approximately
US$102 million that has already been
spent primarily on equipment purchases
and engineering services.

We currently have equipment in storage
with an original purchase value of
Us$64 million, including the initial
mining fleet and all long lead time
milling equipment. This foresight should
enable us to avoid equipment related
construction delays, which represent a
serious threat to construction schedules
given the significant increase in the lead
time required for some equipment pieces,
notably milling components which have
delivery times of up to three years.



LAS CRISTINAS HAS
INCREASED ESTIMATED
RESERVES AND
RESOURCES.

In 2007, the commodity sector once again
had an outstanding year with strong
appreciation in the prices of most
commodities.

Nevertheless, precious metals mining
companies found themselves facing rising
input costs, along with the difficulty of
adding reserves to offset the pace at
which ounces were being produced.

We are pleased to report that
during 2007:

= Crystallex demonstrated a growing
reserve and resource base.

* Qur estimated operating costs at
Las Cristinas remnain well below the
average industry costs.

In late 2006 and into early 2007, Crystallex
carried out a follow-up drilt program at
Las Cristinas with great success.

The drill results demonstrated continuity of
mineralization through the gap between
the previously planned pits at Conductora
and Mesones-Sofia.

It also showed that the Morrocoy zone
{just northwest of the planned pit)

is a fault-displaced extension of the
Conductora mineralization. We believe
that the Morrocoy zone is an extension
of the principal deposit at Las Cristinas.

The 2006/2007 drill program positively
impacted the estimated Reserves and
Resources at Las Cristinas.

Measured and Indicated
Resources

Measured and Indicated Resources
increased to 20.76 million ounces of gold
{629 million tonnes with an average gold
grade of 1.03g/t}, comprising Measured

Rescurces of 146 million tonnes at a gold
grade of 1.14g/t (5.38 million ounces),
and Indicated Resources of 483 million
tonnes at a grade of 0.99g#t

(15.38 million ounces).

This represented a gain of 3.1 million
ounces, or 18%, over the previous
estimate of 17.66 million ounces of
Measured and Indicated Resources
reported in August 2005,

Inferred Resources

The estimate of additional Inferred
Resources, which does not contribute
towards Proven and Probable Reserves,
increased to 6.28 million ounces

{230 million tonnes at an average gold
grade of 0.85q/t} from 4.54 million ounces
{163 million tonnes at an average grade of
0.87g/t gold),

This represented an increase of 1.74 million
ounces, or 38%.

Proven and Probable Reserves

Proven and Probable Reserves based on a
US$550 gold price assumption are now
estimated at 16.86 million ounces of

gold {464 million tonnes grading 1.13g/),
comprising Praoven Reserves of 113 million
tonnes at a gold grade of 1.24g/t

(4.48 million ounces), and Probable
Reserves of 351 million tannes at a

grade of 1.10g/t {12.38 million ounces).

This represented a gain of 2.85 million
ounces, or 20%, over the previous estimate
of 14.01 million ounces in Proven and
Probable Reserves reported in February, 2007.

The updated reserve is contained in a
single open pit that is approximately
3.1km long and over 1.2km wide at its
widest point, with a maximum depth of
approximately 500m below surface.
Mineralization is open at depth.

Fuil details regarding the Reserve and
Resource increases and capital and
operating cost estimates can be found
in the 43-101 Technical Report filed on
SEDAR November, 2007,



LAS CRISTINAS IS EIS
APPROVED FOR THE
ENVIRONMENTAL PERMIT.

In June 2007, Crystallex achieved an
tmportant milestone when the Company
received official notification that we had
fulfilled all the requirements for the
issuance of the Las Cristinas
Environmental permit.

Qur project partner, the CVG, received

a formal notice from the Ministry of the
Environment and Natural Resources of
Venezuela (MinAmb), which stated that
MinAmb had approved the Environmental
Impact Study (EIS) for the Las Cristinas gold
project, and that “the Environmental permit
will be issued following the payment of
taxes and posting of the bond.”

MinAmb requested the CVG to post a
Compliance Guarantee Bond and pay
certain environmental taxes in order to
issue the permit. Crystallex posted the bond
and paid the taxes in mid 2007, and we
were optimistic that the permit would be
issued in a timely manner.

By early fall of 2007 senior Government
Officials were focusing their attention on
the Constitutional Reform Referendum
slated for December 2007.

Following the loss of the Referendum vote,
President Chavez announced changes to his
Cabinet for 2008. He also stated that they
would focus on working with the business
community.

THE VENEZUELAN
GOVERNMENT SUPPORTS
THE DEVELOPMENT OF
LAS CRISTINAS.

In the fall of 2007, the Venezuelan National
Assembly's Commission of Economic
Development reviewed the protracted
timeline for the issuance of the pending
environmental permit. On October 4, the
Commisston held Las Cristinas hearings,
which included testimany from MinAmb,
MIBAM, the CVG and Crystallex.

Following the hearings, the Commission
issued a formal report which concluded
that the CVG and Crystallex had complied
with both the feasibility study and the other
legal and technical requirements for the
permit to be granted by MinAmb, allowing
for the construction and development of
Las Cristinas Project. The Chairman of the
Committee recommended that this permit
be granted.

Venezuela has been our home since the
early 1990s. The country has tremendous
mining potential, excellent infrastructure,
a trained labour force and low energy
and fuel costs. The project will benefit

the Company and its stakeholders as

well as Venezuela, delivering long term
employment (directly and indirectly), social
benefits for local communities, and taxes
and royalties to the Venezuefan economy.



STRENGTHENED
CRYSTALLEX
MANAGEMENT

In April, the Company was pleased to
announce the appointment of Hemdat Sawh
as Crystallex Chief Financial Officer.

A Chartered Accountant, Hemdat joined

us with over 16 years of accounting and
auditing experience. His previous position at
Grant Thornton LLP culminated as Principal,
in which he was lead supervisor for auditing
teams of businesses with a concentration in
publicly-listed mining companies. Hemdat
had also served as CFO for Goldbelt
Resources Lid.

Hemdat holds an MBA degree in Accounting
from York University, a Bachelor of Science
degree in Geclogy from Concordia University
and a Graduate Diploma in Geology from
McGill University.

Also in April, our aperational management
team was greatly strengthened with the
appointment of William Faust as Chief
Operating Officer and Senior Vice President.

Mr. Faust now directs the Company's mining
operations in Venezuela, including the
development and pending construction

and operating phase of the Las Cristinas
gold project in Bolivar State,

Bill has over 28 years of engineering and
management experience, particularly in open
pit mining in Mexico and the Western U.S.
n the past he has served as Vice President
Operations for Nevada Pacific Gold Ltd.,
President of Pan American Silver’s Mexican
operations, and Vice President Operations

of Eldorado Gold Corporation.

Since joining Crystallex, Bilt has been active
in identifying and hiring candidates to
supplement the Las Cristinas project team.
We are happy to report that we have added
Jose Diaz Daza as General Manager at

Las Cristinas and James McMullan as
Construction Manager. Both Mr. Daza

and Mr. McMullan join us with years of
operating and construction management
experience.

PROGRESS HAS BEEN
ONGOING SINCE OUR
CONTRACT BEGAN

IN 200¢2.

Although we have experienced permitting
delays, we have made considerable
progress in advancing the development
of Las Cristinas and increasing its value.

Updating the site’s potential - Several drill
programs at Las Cristinas have greatly
increased the estimated reserves and
resources, while estimated capital cost
increases have been modest by industry
standards and operating costs are forecast
to be below industry average.

Meeting permit requirements - We have
completed every step required for the final
Permit needed for construction, and the
government has approved each step.

Advancing community programs — As we
continue with our social and community
commitments in Bolivar State, Crystallex
enjoys the support of local residents and
regional officials for the timely development
of Las Cristinas.

Building strong alliances — Venezuela’s
new Minister of Basic Industry and Mines
(MIBAM) is also the President of the
Corporacion Venezolana de Guayana (CVGQ),
the crown corporation that contracted with
Crystallex to develop and operate Las
Cristinas. CVG's mandate is 10 promote
industrial development in Bolivar State.

Las Cristinas will provide much needed
employment in an economically depressed
region of the country.

Enhancing management — Crystallex has
appointed a new CFO and a new CQOQ,
who are committed to Las Cristinas with the
confidence that comes from experience. We
have also hired a new General Manager and
Construction Manager to keep the site and
the project team operation-ready.
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MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the Year Ended Cecember 31, 2007 (All doltar amounts in US dollars, unless otherwise stated)

This Management Discussion and Analysis {(*MD&A"} of the financial condition and results of the operations of Crystallex International Covporation
("Crystallex™ or the *Company”} is intended to supplement and complement the Company’s audited consolidated financial s1atements and the related notes
as at and for the year ended December 31, 2007. This MD&A should be read in conjunction with those audited consolidated financial statements,

The Company prepares its consolidated financial statements in U.S. dollars and in accordance with Canadian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

This MDEA was prepared on March 31, 2008 and the Company's public {ilings, including its 2007 Annual Information Farm, are available on SEDAR
at www. sedar.com

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements included or incorporated by reference in this Management Discussion and Analysis, including
information as to the future financial or operating performance of the Company, its subsidiaries and its projects,
constitute forward-looking statements. The words “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “contemplate,” “target,” “plan,”
“intends,” “continue,” “budget,” "estimate,” "may,” “"schedule” and similar expressions identify forward-looking
statements. Forward-looking statements include, among other things, statements regarding targets, estimates and
assumptions in respect of gold production and prices, operating costs, results and capital expenditures, mineral reserves
and mineral resources and anticipated grades and recovery rates. Forward-locking statements are necessarily based upon
a number of estimates and assumptions that, while considered reasonable by the Company, are inherently subject to
significant business, economic, competitive, pelitical and social uncertainties and contingencies. Many factars could
cause the Company's actual results to differ materially from those expressed or implied in any forward-looking statements
made by, or on behalf of, the Company. Such factors include, among others, risks relating to additional funding
requirements, reserve and resource estimates, gold prices, exploration, development and operating risks, illega! miners,
political and foreign risk, uninsurable risks, competition, limited mining operations, production risks, environmental
regulation and hability, government regulation, currency fluctuations, recent losses and write-downs and dependence on
key employees, See “Risk Factors” section of this Management Discussion and Analysis. Due 1o risks and uncertainties,
including the risks and uncertainties identified above, actual events may differ materially from current expectations,
Investors are cautioned that forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and, accordingly,
investors are cautioned not o put undue reliance on forward-tooking statements due 1o the inherent uncertainty therein.
Forward-looking statements are made as of the date of this Management Discussion and Analysis and the Company
disclaims any intent or obligation to update publicly such forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new
information, future events or results or otherwise,

Cautionary Note to U.S. Investors

The terms "proven mineral reserve” and "probable mineral reserve” used in this report are Canadian mining terms as defined in accordance with
National Instrument 43-103 - Standards of Disclosure for Mineral Projects under the guidelines set out in the Canadian Institute of Mining, Metallurgy
and Petroleum {"CIM~) Standards on Mineral Resources and Mineral Reserves, adopted by the CtM Council on August 20, 2000 as may be amended
from time to time by the CIM. These definitions differ from the definitions in the SEC's (ndustry Guide 7. The terms, “measured mineral resource”,
“indicated mineral resource” and “inferred mineral resource” used in this report are Canadian mining terms as defined in accordance with National
Instrument 43-101. While the terms “measured mineral resource”, “indicate¢ mineral resource”, and “inferred mineral resource” are recognized and
required by Canadian regulations, they are not detined terms under Industry Guide 7 and normally are not permitted to be used in reports and
registration statements filed with the SEC. As such, infarmation contained in this report concerming descriptions of resources under €anadian standards
may not be comparable to similar information made public by U.S. companies in SEC filings. With respect to “indicated mineral resource” and "inferred
mineral resource” there is a great amount of uncertainty as to their existence and a great uncertainty as to their economic and legal feasisility. It can
not be assumed that all or any part of an “indicated mineral resource” oe "inferred mineral resource” will ever be upgraded to a higher category.
Investors are cautioned not to assume that any part or all of mineral deposits in these categories will ever be converted into reserves,

CAYSTALLEX ANNUAL REPOAT 2007 1



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2007 (All dollar amounts in US doliars, unless otherwise stated)

OVERVIEW

The Company is engaged in the production of gold and related activities including exploratiaon, development, mining and
processing in Venezuela. The Corporation’s principal asset is its interest in the Las Cristinas project located in Bolivar State,
Venezuela. The Corporation’s other assets include the Tomi operations, the Lo Incréible properties {(which include the
La Victoria deposit), and the Revemin mill, all of which are located in Bolivar State, Venezuela (the “El Callao operations™),

HIGHLIGHTS

* In June 2007, the Company received written notice from its project partnes, the Corporacion Venezolana de Guayana
{the “CVG"), that all the requirements of the Ministry of the Environment and Natusal Resources, {*MinAmb") for
the issuance of the Authorization to Affect Natural Resources (the "Permit”) to commence construction at Las
Cristinas had been fulfilled. The CVG notice was based on MinAmb approval of the Las Cristinas Environmental
Impact Statement (“EIS"), the subsequent posting of a Campliance Guarantee Bond and payment in full of certain
taxes. Accordingly, the Company believes it has satisfied all of the regulatory requirements and is in a position 1o
receive the Permit.

¢ In October 2007, the Venezuelan National Assemblys Commission of Economic Development published a report
following hearings on the Las Cristinas project. The report concluded that the CVG and Crystallex have met all the
requlatory requirements and called for the prompt issuance of the Permit. The hearings included representatives from
MinAmb, the Ministry of Basic Industries and Mining, ("MIBAM™), the CVG and Crystallex.

* Concluded a 13,566m drill program at Las Cristinas. Reserves were increased by 20% to 16.86 million ounces
calculated at a gold price of $550 per ounce. Measured and indicated resources increased by 18% to 20.76 million
ounces. Inferred resources increased 38% to 6.28 million ounces. The Company filed an updated Technical Report for
the Las Cristinas project on SECAR in November 2007 to support these revisions. The new reserves are contained in
approximately 465 million tonnes of ore at a gold grade of 1.13 grams/tonne and have a waste to ore strip ratio of
1.38 to 1. The resulting open pit will be 1,250 meters wide, 3,100 meters long and 430 meters deep.

e As part of its continuing corporate and social responsibility commitments, the Company commenced construction of
a new medical centre and sewage treatment plant to serve local communities in the vicinity of the Las Cristinas
project. Both projects are currently well underway and are scheduled for completion in 2008 with a total estimated
cost of $5.3 million.

e In April 2007, the Company closed a public equity financing of common shares of the Company for net proceeds
of $50.7 million.

*  On February 11, 2008, the Company closed a public equity financing of 32.9 million units for net proceeds of
$65.0 milkion.

LAS CRISTINAS - PERMIT PROGRESS

During 2007, the Company's project partner, the CVG, was formally notified by MinAmb that all the requirements for the
issuance of the Permit had been fulfilled. MinAmb approved the BIS for the Las Cristinas gold project, and requested the
CVG post a construction compliance guarantee bond and pay certain environmental taxes. Crystallex posted the requested
bond and paid the requested taxes. No impediments have been raised in discussions with Government officials, and they
have recently confirmed that the Company is in good standing for the issuance of the Permit.

The Company received additional support for the issuance of the Permit in the fall of 2007, when the Venezuelan National
Assembly's Commission of Economic Development reviewed the protracted timeline for the issuance of the Permit.
Following its October 4™ 2007 hearings, the Commission issued a report noting that representatives from MinAmb,
MIBAM, the CVG, and Crystallex had testified at their hearings. The Commission’s report concfuded that the CvG and
Crystallex had complied with the feasibility study and other legal and technica! requirements, thus allowing for the Permit
to be granted by MinAmb. The Chairman of the Commission recommended MinAmb grant the Permit.

2 CRYSTALLEX ANNUAL REPOAT 2007



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2007 (All daltar amounts in US dollars, unless otherwise stated)

In early 2008, Mr. Rodclfo Sanz was appointed the Minister of MIBAM and President of the CVG, having direct
invoivement with the Las Cristinas project in both capacities. Crystallex has met with Minister Sanz and expects to host
Mr. Sanz at Las Cristinas in the near term.

Crystallex representatives have also recently met with the newly appointed Canadian Ambassador to Venezuela and
provided him with an update on the Las Cristinas project. The Ambassador is very active, as is the Government of Canada
in furthering the interests of Canadian companies investing in Venezuela. Following a visit to Bolivar State, the Ambassador
commented that he was working to advance Canadian interests {including mining) in Bolivar State and venezuela.

The Company is actively pursuing all channels available in Venezue'a to keep the Permit issue high on the agenda of the
officials responsible for promoting, authorizing and approving mineral development in Venezuela.

LAS CRISTINAS - SOCIAL INVESTMENTS AND COMMITMENTS

The Company is committed to improving and supporting the local communities in the areas of its existing mines and the
Las Cristinas project. For Las Cristinas it has established an area of influence {*AQI") that includes 11 separate communities
that are within 20 km of the project. In each of these areas, the focus since 2002 has been in developing reliable and safe
potable water sources and systems, and in supporting local schools. The Company has also provided a significant portian
of the cost of operating the current rural medical clinic in Las Claritas, the largest of the communities. The clinic staff of
five, inciuding full time coverage by two doctors, medical supplies including drugs, and other operating costs such as
building maintenance and improvements are provided by the Company. Ongoing support for a variety of local needs
including school supplies and improvements, local sports teams, children’s Christmas parties are also provided and
administered by the Companys community relations staff.

The Company is currently undertaking major new construction programs ta improve infrastructure and medical service for
the local communities. A new hospital that is nearly double the size of the existing rural medical clinic is under
construction. It will support all communities within the AQI. It will also be equipped with new medical equipment and
furnishings. This project, including previously completed design work is estimated to cost $2.8 million. In addition, the
streets leading to the new hospital will be paved and the main street in Las €laritas, which is in bad repair, will be replaced.

The other major current community infrastructure project is the construction of a sewage treatment system at an estimated
cost of $2.5 million including work already completed. This project will greaily improve the sanitary conditions of the three
adjoining villages of Las Claritas, Nuevas Las Claritas and Santo Domingo. Most of the underground sewage piping system
is already in place and the plant is due to be completed in the second half of 2008,

LAS CRISTINAS - UPDATED RESOURCES AND RESERVES

On November 7, 2007, the Company filed on SEDAR a Technical Report titled “Technical Report Update on the
Las Cristinas Project Bolivar State, Venezuela”. The report included an update of the resources and reserves for the
Las Cristinas project,

Proven and Probable reserves at Las Cristinas, calculated using a $550 per ounce gold price and revised operating costs,
are cutrently estimated to be 16.86 million ounces. As detailed in the November 7, 2007 Technical Report, the estimate
of operating costs has increased from $7.66 per tonne of ore in August 2005 to $9.80 per tonne of ore. Operating costs
are now expected to average $258 per ounce for the first five years of production and $346 per ounce over the life of
mine, based on a 20,000 tpd operating rate. Reserves were estimated assuming an average gold recovery rate of
approximately 88% and variable cut-off grades of between 0.33 g/t and 0.57 g/t.
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Proven and Probable Reserves for Las Cristinas are tabled befow:

Tonnaes [millions) Grade (git) Ouncas (millions)
Praven Reserves 13 1.24 4,48
Probable Reserves 352 1.1¢ 12.38
Total Proven and Probable Raserves 465 1.13 16.86

Measured and Indicated resources are presently estimated at 20.76 million ounces, an 18% increase from 17.66 million
ounces reported in the August 2005 Technical Report.

Measured and Indicated resources, which include reserves, are tabled below:

Tonnes (milllons) Grade {g/t) Dunces [millions)
Measured Resources 146 1.14 5.38
Indicated Resources 483 .99 15.38
Total Measured and Indicated Resources 629 1.03 20.76

In addition to the Measured and Indicated Resources, Las Cristinas has estimated Inferred Resources of 6.28 million ounces
(230 million tonnes at an average gold grade of 0.85 g/t).

The strip ratic is estimated at 1.38:1. The updated reserve estimate is contained in a single open pit, which is approximately
3.7 km long and 1.2 km wide at its widest point, with a maximum depth of approximately 500m. Mineralization is open
at depth.

All estimates of mineral reserves and mineral resources have been estimated in accordance with the Standards on Mineral
Resources and Reserve Definitions and Guidelines of the Canadian Institute of Mining, Metallurgy and Petroleum as
adopted by the Canadian Securities Administrators in National Instrument 43-101. Mineral resources that are not reserves
do not have demonstrated economic viability.

The revised reserve and resource estimate was prepared by MDA under the direction of Steven Ristorcelli, P Geo.,
Scott Hardy, P Eng., and Thomas Dyer, PE., all independent qualified persons for the purposes of National Instrument
43-101, with geological and sampling input from Dr. Richard Spencer, P Geo., Crystallex's former Vice President
Exploration, who is a qualified person for the purposes of National Instrument 43-101.

SELECTED ANNUAL INFORMATION

2007 2006 2005
Financial Results ($000, except per share) [Restated) (Restated)
Mining Revenues $ 13,565 $ 28.088 $ 24,990
Net Loss H) (30,451) $ {35,684) 3 (43,764)
Basic and Diluted Net Loss per Share $ (0.12) 3 {0.15) $ (0.22)
Weighted average shares - Basic and diluted {millions) 256.7 230.2 194.7
Cash Flow used in Operating Activities $ (34,309) 3 (30,676) $ {34,253)
Investing Activities
Expenditures an PPE H 26,893 $ 49,788 H 92,831
Financing Activities $ 49,215 $ 83,643 H 18,428
Financial Position ($000)
Cash and cash equivalents $ 16,065 H 28,573 H 4,070
Restricted cash and cash equivalents $ - H - 3 21,323
Total assets — Restated! H 339,240 $ 324,695 1 270,915
Qutstanding Debt H 83N 3 87,697 $ 96,938
Shareholders’ Equity $ 228,407 $ 199,481 $ 135,475

' The 2006 and 2005 balances have been restated as discussed in Note t1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements,
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SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY RESULTS (UNAUDITED)

$,000 except per thare 2007 2006
Q4 Q3 Q2 +2] Q4 Q3 Q2 Qi
(Amended) {Amended) (Amended)
Revenue $ 4,809 § 2,188 % 2,848 % 3720 § 5720 % 9769 § 5520 % 2,079

Net Loss previously

reported $ $ (9256) $ (13,703 $ (2071} %3 (1617 § (8815 § (8296) §  (6.956)

Adjustment to
unrealized gain 2,534 1.580 9,252 - - - -

Net loss as amended  § (8,787) § {6,722y § (12,123) % (2819} § (L6117 § (8,815) § (8,296) § {6,956)

Per Share - Basic
and diluted H 0.03) § {0.03) {0.05} % (0o} $ {0.04) 9§ {0.04) § {0.04) § (0.03)

The Q1 to Q3 2007 Net Loss have been amended to reflect the year end adjustments 10 unrealized gains as discussed in this MD&A and
in Note 10 to the 2007 Consolidated Financial Statements.

The quarterly trends are consistent with the explanations of the annual trends set out in this MD&A.

FINANCIAL RESULTS OVERVIEW

The Company recorded net losses of $30.45 million {($0.12) per share), $35.7 million ((30.15) per share) and $43.8 million
(($0.22) per share) in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The decrease in the net loss in 2007 compared to 2006 is due primarily 1o recording an unrealized foreign currency
translation gain of $14.3 million relating to future income taxes compared to $Nil in 2006. This unrealized non-cash
foreign currency translation gain arose from the translation into U.S. dollars at the end of the year, certain Venezuelan-
denominated future income tax liabilities that are recognized in connection with expenditures on the Las Cristinas project.
The Company recorded an operating loss of $6.3 million at the El Callac operations in 2007 compared to an aperating
loss of $0.3 million in 2006, coupled with a foreign exchange loss of $4.6 million {which excludes $14.3 million unrealized
gain on translation of future income taxes relating to Las Cristinas} in 2007 compared to $0.5 million foreign exchange
gain in the comparative period, The £l Callao operations have been impacted by the combined effects of lower production
and the increasing spread between the official exchange rate and the parallel exchange rate in Venezuela as discussed in
the "Income Statement” section of this MD&A. Accordingly, revenue from gold sales declined to $13.6 million in 2007
from $28.1 millien in 2006. The foreign exchange loss is also due to the use of the parallel rate in translation of financial
staterments as opposed to the lower official rate used in previous years.

The decrease in the net loss in 2006 compared to 2005 is due primarily 1o recording a commodity contract loss of
$3.8 million in 2005 relating to gold contract positions which were eliminated in 2005 and a $6.6 million write-down of
its investment in ECM in 2005 (refer to Note 9 in the Notes to the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements). The
2005 results include $1.4 million of unrealized foreign exchange gains relating to future tax liabilities as discussed above,

Revenue from gold sales increased in 2006 compared to 2005 due to the realization of a higher average gold price on
gold sales which morse than offset the reduction in ounces sold.

Cash flow used in operating activities was a deficit of $34.3 miltion in 2007 compared with a deficit of $30.7 million in
2006 and a deficit of $34.3 million in 2005. The cash flow deficits incurred in all three years were largely attributable to
corporate general and adminisirative expenses which approximated $20.0 million per year, interest of approximately
$9.4 million per year and cash used to fund operating losses at the El Callao operations which generated an operating loss
of $6.3 million in 2007.

The Company’s cash position at December 31, 2007 was $16.1 million. Capital expenditures on a cash basis for
Las Cristinas were $26.9 million during 2007.
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EL CALLAQ OPERATIONS REVIEW
Key Mine Operating Statistics (USD)

2007 2006 2045

Operating Statistics
Gold Production (ounces) 33.567 47,345 53,178
Gold Sold {ounces) 32,815 48,570 55,217
Per Ounce Data:

Total Cash Cost'? $ 519 [} 540 $ 420

Total Cost™? $ 557 3 570 3 456

Average Realized Gold Price? H 413 3 578 $ 453
Awverags Foreign Exchange Rates (Bolivars) 4,341 2,150 2,150
Average Spot Goid Price $ 695 $ 604 $ 445
Key Mine Operating Statistics (Bolivars)

2007 006 2005

Operating Statistics
Gold So0id {ounces) 32815 48,570 55,217
Per Qunce Data: (Bolivars , thousands)

Average Realized Gold Price 1,794 1,243 573

Total Cash Cost’ 2,388 1,147 a75
Financial Results (Bolivars, thousands)
Mining Revenues 58,885,665 60,389,200 53,728,500
Total Cash Operating Cost' 78,362,220 55,709,790 48,314,875
Awurage Forsign Exchange Rates 4,341 2,150 2,150

' Total Cost represents the total cost of gold production, including amortization, depletion, accretion and revisions to asset retirement
abligations. For an explanation, refer to the section on Non-GAAF measures at the end of this MD&A. The calculation is based on
ounces of goid sold. Since the second guarter of 2005, all costs at the El Callao operations are expensad due to the short life of
these mines.

* Based on the average parallel (market) exchange rate in effect in 2007 compared with the official exchange rate in 2006 and 2005, Using the official
rate In 2007, the total cash cost of production was $1,048 per ounce.

Production Summary

2007 2006 2005

Gold Production (ounces)
Tomi Open Pits 8,437 19,428 30,290
Tomi Underground 13,551 22,210 19,811
La Victoria 9,356 3,260 1,491
Purchased Material 2,223 2,447 1,586
Total Gold Production {ounces) 33,567 47,345 53,178
Total Ore Processed’ {tonnes} 312,915 367,667 418,414
Head Grade of Ore Processed (gh) as 4.4 4.2
Total Recovery Rate (%) 87% 92% 94%
Total Gold Recovered (ounces) 33,567 47,345 53,178
Total Cash Cost Per Qunce Sold s 519 H 540 1] 420
Mine Operating Cash Flow ($000)* $ (3,481} 5 1,866 $ 1,776
Capital Expenditures ($000)" - - ] 856
Net Mine Cash Fiow (5000) $ {3,481) 1] 1,866 H 920

' Qre from Tomi, La Victaria and purchased material is processed at the Company’s Revemin mill.

! Mining Revenues less Operating Expenses adjusted for non-cash items and excludes exploration costs of $1,574,000 in 2007 and
$620,000 in 2006.

! Capital expenditures at the El Callao operating mines, excludes Las Cristinas. Since the second quarter of 2005, alt costs at the El Callao
operations have been expensed due to the short reserve life of these mines.
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Tomi

2007 2006 2005
Tomi Open Pits
Tonnes Qre Mined 95,629 227,845 313,599
Tonnes Waste Mined 1,531,589 2,287,217 1,971,402
Strip Ratio (Wasie;Ore) 16.0:1 10.0:1 6.3:1
Tonnes Ore Processed 105,126 211,936 319,287
Average Grade of Ore Processed {(gft) 2.8 ER 3.2
Recovery Rate (%) 0% 94% 93%
Production {ounces) 8,437 19,428 30,290
Tomi Underground
Tonnes Ore Mined 61,021 89,689 12,1717
Tonnes Ore Processed 65,334 88,183 63,319
Average Grade of Ore Processed (git) 7.0 B.4 10.2
Recovery Rate (%) 2% 93% 95%
Production (ounces) 13,551 22,210 19,811
La Victoria

2007 2006 200%
Tonnes Ore Mined 128,676 64,222 24,892
Tonnes Waste Mined 557,657 353,052 126,704
Strip ratio (Waste:Ore} 4.3 5.5:1 5.1
Tonnes Ore Processed 125,903 51,424 25,649
Average Grade of Ore Processed (git) 2.9 23 292
Recovery Rate (%) 79% 86% 85%
Production (ounces) 9,356 3,260 1,49

Gold preoduction in 2007 was 33,567 ounces, a reduction of 29% compared to 47,345 ounces produced in 2006.

Lower gold production in 2007 reflects reduced mining and processing activity, as well as lower ore grades and gold
recovery. Open pit mining was partially impacted by heavy rainfall, poor equipment availability (particularly the torg lead
time required 10 obtain a replacement drill compressor from the United States) and a general reduction in praduclivity as
the pits near depletion. The production of ore from the Tomi pits also declined due to higher sirip ratios {the ratio of waste
mined to ore mined). The strp ratio at the Tomi pits increased from 10.0:1 in 2006 to 16.0:1 in 2007. The higher strip
ratio in 2007 was due largely to deeper are in both the Fosforito and McKenzie open pits which require more waste
removal prior 1O encountering the ore, Also contributing to the higher stripping ratic in 2607 was timing of mining of the
push-backs in both pits which saw rmost of the waste stripping completed in 2007 to uncover ore that is 10 be mined in
2008. On the whole, in 2007, compared to 2006, there were fewer tonnes of waste and ore mined and a greater
proportion of tonnes mined were waste

Ore processed declined by 15% in 2007 as a consequence of mining fewer tonnes of ore. Additionally, the grade of ore
processed was 14% lower during 2007 compared to 2006. Lower grades were primarily attributable to the underground
mine, where, in the current year, the ore feed to the mill is a mixture of lower grade ramp development ore and stope ore,
whereas in 2006, the underground ore was all from the stopes, which tend to be higher grade than the ore encountered
during ramp development.

Gold recovery at the Revemin mill was also lower as a greater propertion of the ore processed during 2007 was refractory
ore from the La Victoria deposit. The refractory ore, which is less amenable to traditional milling processes, has lower
recovery rates than the non-refractory are from the Tomi deposits.
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Operating costs increased significantly in 2007 as a result of a general increase in the cost of operating suppties, labour,
higher mining contractor rates and higher expenditures related to maintenance and repair of the processing plant (the
plant additions would typically be capitalized; however, are expensed due to the short life of the operation). For
comparative purposes, if 2007 costs are converted to USD using the same official rate as used in 2006, the toial cash cost
per ounce in 2007 was $1,048 per ounce, an increase of 94% from $540 per ounce in 2006,

At year end 2007, there were two operating pits on the Tomi concession — Mackenzie and Fosforito. Fosforito is now depleted
and mining will stop at Mackenzie by mid 2008. Mining operations are also being conducted at the La Victoria pit.

The Company is evaluating a number of options for extending the life of the El Callao operations beyond 2008. The most
significant project is the expansion of the La Victoria pit. The next phase of mining at La Victoria requires diverting the
Yuruari River. The river diversion and other associated project investments have a preliminary estimated capital cost of
approximately $9.0 million and no decision has been made on such a project. Based on the results from a 2004 drill
program and associated resource estimaie, the river diversion project and expanding the pit at La Victoria may add
approximately 3 to 4 years of mine life to the El Callac operations. The current phase of mining at La Victaria will continue
until November 2008.

The Company recently completed a drilt program on the Fosforito pit at Tomi and the results will be reviewed 1o determine
if it will be feasible to expand the pit. This is a relatively small project that, if undertaken, would require waste stripping
for most of the remainder of 2008 and would then praoduce ore into the third quarter of 2009,

The Company is also drilling at the Tomi underground mine to determine the viabitity of developing the mine below its
current level. Mining on the current level will be completed towards the end of the first quarter of 2008. Ramp
development was suspended at the current level until the results of the drill program are assessed. Data should be available
to make a decision on expanding the underground mine by the end of the second quarter of 2008; however, with the
underground mine producing between 250 and 300 tonnes of ore per day, the underground evaluation will need to access
the availability of additional sources of are to maintain full capacity at the Revemin mill.

Drilling is also underway on new targets identified in 2007 on the Tomi property.

Should the Campany not proceed with the La Victoria or Fosforito pit expansions, and if it is not viable to operate Revemin
with ore from the underground mine only, production may cease at the El Callac operations by the end of 2008.

INCOME STATEMENT
Revenue
Mining revenue was $13.6 million in 2007, compared to $28.1 million in 2006 and $25.0 million in 2005.

In 2007, gold sales were 32,815 ounces and the Company’s average realized gold price was 3413 per ounce, compared
10 sales of 48,570 ounces at an average realized price of $578 per ounce for 2006, and 55,217 ounces at an average
realized price of $453 per ounce in 2005, The realized price of gold was significantly less in 2007 compared to 2006 due
10 the use of the higher parallel rate of converting Bs to USD in 2007 as opposed to the official rate of 2,150 used in the
translation from Bolivars {(*Bs”) to USD in 2006. Lower gotd production in 2007 reflects progressively reduced mining and
processing activity, as well as lower ore grades and gold recoveries. A higher realized gold price in 2006 mare than offset
the progressive reduction in production from 2005 to 2006.

The Company sold its gold production to the Central Bank of Venezuela ("CBV") for the first nine months of 2007. Sales
are based on the USD spot gold price at the time of delivery; however, payment is received in Bs, with the USD revenues
converted to Bs at the official rate of 2,150Bs. For USD reporting purposes, the 8s are converted back to USD; however,
the re-conversion uses the higher parallel (market) rate, as the Company is not registered to apply to purchase USD at the
official rate of 2,150. In practice, the Company is not buying USD, rather the Bs received from gold sales are used to fund
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the EI Callao operations. For reporting purposes, the conversion back to USD results in reportable revenue and realized
prices per ounce that are well below the average USD spot gold rates for the 2007 periods. For the 2006 and 2005
comparable years, the conversion to USD for reporting purposes was at the official rate, thus the realized price per ounce
figures are comparable to the average spot gold prices for the applicable years in 2006 and 2005.

In order to maximize the Bs received from gold sales, the Company informed Venezuelan authorities of its decision to sell its
gold praduction to registered local purchasers, as they buy the gold at a significant premium to the official rate. In October
2007, the Company commenced the sale of gold production at £l Callao to registered businesses at prices based on the USD
spot price of gold, with settlement in Bs pegged to the parallel rate instead of selling to the CBV at the official rate.

Venezuelan Exchange Controls

In accordance with the Exchange Contral regulations in Venezuela, the CBV centralizes the purchase and sale of foreign
currency in Venezuela which has been fixed since 2003. The current rate of exchange is fixed at 2,150 {2.150 effective
January 1, 2008) per United States Dollas (*USD"). The Venezuelan government enacted the Criminal Exchange Law that
impases strict sanctions for the exchange of Venezuelan currency with other foreign currencies through other than
designated methods. The exchange regulations do not apply to certain securities which are traded within Venezuela and
on recognized exchanges outside Venezuela. Therefore, the purchase in one market and sale in the other market of these
dual listed securities provides an effective parallel market for the Venezuelan currency. The majority of the securities that
are so traded are issued by the Venezuelan government.

The parallel or market rate in 2007 was volatile, but the trend has been consistently higher than the official rate. As a result
of this spread, transactions recorded and settled in Bs have been converted to USD at the average parallel exchange rate
during 2007 instead of the official rate as used in prior years. Monetary items reported in Bs have been converted using
the paralle] rate at year end. During the third quarter of 2007 the Company reviewed the accounting for foreign currency
transactions in Venezuela due to the increasing spread between the official rate and the parailel or markei rate in
Venezuela. It was determined that, as consequence of the rapid decline in the valuation of the Venezuelan Bolivar, as
reflected in the parallel market for foreign cuerencies in Venezuela, the translating from Bs to USD using the official rate
was no longer appropriate. As a result, the Company determined that amendments should be reflected in the previously
issued financial statements for the three and six month interim periods ended March 31, 2007 and June 30, 2007,
respectively, to account for monetary, income and expense items at the parallel or market rate prevailing at the respective
dates of each.

Exchange Controls Impact on Revenue and Operating Costs

The Company seld its gold production to the CBV for the first nine months of 2007. Sales to the CBV are based on the USD
spot gold price at the time of delivery; however, payment is received in Bs, with the USD revenues converted 1o Bs by the
CBV at the official rate of Bs 2,150. In 2006 and 2005, for USD reporting purposes, the Company converted the Bs back to
USD at the same rate of 2,150 and, as a result, the reported realized price per ounce was comparable to the actual average
spot gold price for the period. However, with the parallel rate in 2007 materially above the official rate and since the
Company is not registered to purchase USD in Venezuela at the official rate, it was determined that for 2007 USD reporting
purposes, the Company convert the Bs revenue back to USD using the higher parallel rate. {In practice, the Company does
not convert the Bs revenue to USD, rather the Bs are used to fund ongoing operations). As a consequence of recefving Bs
at the official rate on gold sales, then converting back to USD at the parallel rate for reparting purposes, the Company’s
2007 reported USD revenue reflects a realized price that is significantly below the average spot price for the year and below
the actuat price realized for the year. For example, the Company's reported realized price in 2007 is $413 per ounce as
compared with the average annual spot price of $695 per ounce on which the actual gold sales are based.

Similarly, USD reported operating costs in 2007 have been reduced as a result of converting a portian of the costs to USD
at the higher parallel rate in 2007 compared to the official rate used in 2006 and 2005.
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Operating Expenses
Mine operations’ expenses were $19.6 million, $26.2 million and $22.1 miilion in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Similar to revenues, operating expenses and unit operating costs in 2007 need to be considered in light of the spread
between the official rate and the parallel rate. The 2007 USD reported costs have been reduced, in part, by the conversion
of some Bs costs to USD using the higher parallel rate as opposed to the official rate used in 2006 and 2005. The total
cash cost per ounce sold was $519 per ounce in 2007 compared to $540 per ounce in 2006 ang $420 per ounce in 2005.
Using comparable conversion rates, the total cash costs for 2007 would have equated to $1,048 per ounce, The increase
in unit operating costs is attributable primarily to lower gold production and higher costs for mining contractors, labour,
maintenance and operating consumables.

Amortization, Depletion and Accretion related to Asset Retirement Obligations

Amortization expense, related to the Company's El Callao operations, was $nil, $1.0 million and $2.4 million in 2007, 2006
and 2005, respectively. The reduction in amortization expense reflects the fuli amortization of the carrying value of the
Revemin mill by the end of the third quarter of 2006. Commencing in 2005, the Company decided to amortize the
remaining carrying value of the Revemin mill over a two year period to reftect the estimate at the time of a two year life
of reserves to be processed at the mill, The Revemin mill still continues to process ore at El Callao.

The expense related to the Company's El Callao asset retirement obligations was $0.2 miliion, $0.3 million and $0.3 millien
in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The current ore reserves at El Callao are expected to be depleted in November 2008.
The Company will be assessing the results of various drill programs during the second quarter of 2008; however, at this
time, it is uncertain whether the El Callao operations wilt continue beyond 2008. The Company has also revised the
previous estimates for mine reclamation at El Callao. The increased estimates and the earlier closure times have combined
to increase the asset retirement obligations by $1.0 million in 2007.

There are no asset retirement obligations related to Las Cristinas at present,

Depletion expense, also related to the Company’s El Callao operations, was $nil, $0.8 million and $0.2 million in 2007,
2006 and 2005, respectively. These results reflect the decision to write-down all of the mineral properties at Ef Callao by
the end of 2006.

Corporate General and Administrative Expenses

Corporate General and Administrative expenses were $21.7 million in 2007 compared to $22.9 million in 2006. In 2007,
an increase in payroll expenses related to severance payments 1o a former execuiive were maore than offset by a reduction
in legal expenses.

Comparing expenses of $22.9 million in 2006 with expenses of $23.1 million in 2005, higher lega! fees, principally related
to the Las Cristinas project, were partially offset by a decrease in capital taxes, payroll and travel expenses.

Corporate General and Adminisirative expenses include $3.1 million {2006: $2.5 million; 2005: $3.7 million} of stock-
based compensation.

Interest Expense

Interest expense was $13.0 million, $12.9 million and $11.8 in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. These amounts include
interest accretion of approximately $3.6 million in 2007, $3.0 million in 2006, and $2.7 million in 2005, on the senior
unsecured $100 million notes and on the Standard bank debt up to early 2007, both of which are instruments with debt
and equity compaonents. Interest expense for all three years includes semi-annual cash payments of $4.7 million on the
$100 million notes which bear interest at 9.375% per annum and payable semi-annually. The decrease in interest
expense frorm 2006 to 2007 reflects repayment of the Standard Bank debt in 2006 and 2007. The increase in interest from
2005 to 2006 was primarily due 1o the fact that the restructured Standard Bank debt, which was entered into in
December 2005, was interest bearing throughout 2006,
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Foreign Exchange Gains

Foreign exchange gains include unrealized non-cash amounts of $14.3 million, $Nil, and $1.4 million in 2007, 2006 and
2005, respectively. These were derived from the translation into U.S. dollars at the end of each respective year of certain
Venezuelan denominated future income tax liabilities in connection with expenditures on the Las Cristinas Project. The
resulting future 1ax liability is subject to foreign exchange translation gains and losses at each reporting period when it is
re-valued into US dollars. The Venezuelan year end foreign exchange spot rate used to translate Venezuelan Bs to USD
changed significantly from 2,150 Bs in 2006 1o 5,500 Bs in 2007 to the USD, resulting in the opening balance future tax
liability being reduced by $14.3 million and a correspanding unrealized foreign exchange gain being recorded in 2607,
There was no such gain in 2006 as the exchange rate in effect in both 2006 and 2005 was at 2,150 Bs to the USD. The
foreign exchange rate in 2004 was 1,920 Bs compared to 2,150 Bs in 2005 resufting in a $1.4 million unrealized gain
being recorded in 2005. See Notes 10 and 11 to the 2007 Censolidated Financial Statements for additional infarmation
relating to the accounting for future income tax liabilities and restaterent of prior years.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Crystallex's principal sources of liquidity have been equity and debt financings. The Company does not expect to generate
positive cash flow afier operating and corporate general and administrative expenses until the Las Cristinas project is
operating at full capacity.

After receipt of the Las Cristinas Permit, the Company will determine its overall funding requirements to cover the period
through commercial production of Las Cristinas. The funding requirement will include the balance of capital required to
complete the development of Las Cristinas, and funds to meet the Company's general and administrative expenses, debt
service and financing fees. The Company intends to fund its overall requirement with existing cash and is considering
various financing alternatives including public market debt, timited recourse project debt and equity.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

On December 31, 2007, the Company had cash and cash equivalents of $16.1 million, as compared with $28.6 miltion
at December 31, 2006.

The change in the cash balance during 2007 is reconciled as follows {$ millions)

Cash and cash equivalents, Decemnber 31, 2006 $ 28.6
Cash used in operating activities {34.3)
Capital expenditures - Las Cristinas (26.9)
Principal debt repayments (3.6)
Total uses of cash and cash equivalents (64,8}
Cash from issuance of common shares 52.8

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents (0.5)
Cash and cash equivalents, December 31, 2007 } 16.1

At December 31, 2007, the Company’'s debt cansisted of face value $100 million of 9.375% senior unsecured notes (the
“Notes") due December 2011. The Company may redeem the Notes, in whole or in part, at any time after December 31,
2008 at a redemption price of between 100% and 102% of the principal amounts of the Notes, depending on the
redemption date, plus accrued and unpaid interest and additional interest, if any, to the date of the redemption.

Cash Flow used in Operating Activities

Cash flow used in operating activities is principally affected by general and administrative expenditures, interest expense,
the level of gold sales, realized gold prices, cash operating costs, and movements in non-cash working capital.
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The 2007 cash flow deficit from operations of $34.3 million reflects the foilowing approximate items ~ cash required to
fund the operating deficit of $7 million at Ef Caltao, general and administrative expenses of $19 million, interest expense
of 39 million, and net of cash inflows from interest income of $1 million.

The 2006 cash flow deficit from operations of $30.7 million reflects the following approximate items — cash required to
fund the operating deficit of $2 million at El Callao, general and administrative expenses of $20 million, interest expense
of $10 million, and net of cash inflows from interest income of $1 miltion.

The 2005 cash flow deficit from operations of $34.3 million reflects the following approximate items — cash required to
fund general and administrative expenses of $20 million, interest expense of $9 million, commodity contract settlements
of $12 miilion and net of cash inflows from El Callac of $1 million, interest income of $2 million and $4 million from
working capital changes.

Investing Activities

Cash used for capital expenditures for the Las Cristinas-project was $26.9 million in 2007 compared with $49.8 million in
2006 and $92.8 million in 2005. In 2006 and 2005, the Company incurred additional capital expenditures of $0.9 million
and 3$9.9 million related to the El Caliao properties, respectively,

Capital spending at Las Cristinas has declined since peaking in 2005, Reduced spending in 2006 and 2007 reflect
progressively lower expenditures for engineering services and equipment procurement. The majority of the engineering
design and equipment procurement was undertaken in 2005. Reduced expenditures are also due to the delay in receiving
the Permit required for commencing site construction activities. With the exception of exploration drilling costs, the
majority of 2007 expenditures represent ongoing costs for administering, securing and maintaining the Las Cristinas camp
and for off-site equipment storage.

Since April 2004, expenditures on tas Cristinas total approximately $206 million, A Technical Report filed on SEDAR on
November 7, 2007 included an updated capital estimate for Las Cristinas of $356 million. Subsequent to receipt of the
Permit and renegotiation of the commercial terms of the major earthworks contracts that were awarded in 2005, a further
update of capital costs will be undertaken.

The Company has spent approximately $102 millian on items included in the $356 million capital estimate. The balance
of $254 million is related 1o expenditures to be incurred during the construction phase that will commence once the Permit
is received. Ongoing expenditures prior to receipt of the Permit are not included in the construction estimate. Ongoing
costs include site security, camp catering, equipment storage, general site administration, environmental, and social and
community development programs.

Equipment which cost approximately $64 million is in storage, principally in Houston (USA), Antwerp {Belgiurm) and Cape
Town (South Africa) and will remain in storage until the commencement of construction at Las Cristinas.

Financing Activities

On February 11, 2008, the Company completed a public offering of 32,890,000 units at C$2.10 per unit for gross
proceeds of €369,069,000, including 4,290,000 units issuable upon the exercise of the over-allotment option by the
syndicate of underwniters. Each unit consists of one commen share of Crystallex and one-half of one common share
purchase warrant. Each whole warrant entitles the holder to purchase a further common share of Crystallex at an exercise
price of C$3.00 for a period expiring on the later of: (i) 18 months from the closing date of the offering which occurred
on February 13, 2008 and (i) six months following the Permit date, where the Permit date is the 45th day following the
receipt by Crystallex of the Permit. The Company paid underwriting fees of 34,144,140

On April 24, 2007, the Company closed a public offering of 14,375,000 common shares (including 1,875,000 common
shares issuable upon the exercise of an over-allotment option by the underwriters) at C$4.25 per share. Net proceeds to
the Company were $50.7 million.
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The Company fully repaid the $3.6 million outstanding balance of the Standard Bank loan by the end of the second
quarter of 2007,

In January 2007, the Company issued 245,710 commaon shares to settle $0.9 million of the outstanding $1.8 million of
exchangeable promissory notes due to Corporacion Vengroup, S.A., ("Vengroup”}. In July 2007, the Company issued
215,190 commaon shares to Vengroup to settle the remaining $0.9 million balance of the exchangeable promissory notes,

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND COMMITMENTS

The Company's contractual obligations and commitments on an undiscounted basis, as at December 31, 2007, are

tabled below: :
Less than 1-3 4-5 More Than

$ millions Qne Year Years Years 5 Years Total
Long Term Debt Repayments 3 - $ - $ 100.00 S - [ 100.00
Asset Retirement Obligations 0.70 2.70 - - 3.40
Operating Lease Obligations and Sacial Commitments 3.08 010 0.01 - 3.19
Total contractual obligations $ 3.78 $ 2.80 H 100.01 3 - 3 106,59

Under the terms of the Las Cristinas Mining Operation Contract with the CVG dated September 17, 2002 the Company
has undertaken to make all investments necessary 1o develop and exploit the Las Cristinas deposits. As described above,
a further 3254 million is expected to be spent on Las Cristinas to meet this obligation,

The Company has royalty commitments that are only payable i gold is produced. There is no abligation to make payments
if gold is not produced. Currently, the Company’s gotd production is from the Tomi and La Victoria concessions, which are
subject 10 a 1.75% royalty on gold revenue. All gold production in Venezuela is subject to an exploitation tax, established
under the Mining Law, which is payable to the Republic of Venezuela. The exploitation tax is presently 3% of gold revenue.

In the normal course of business, the Company has entered into contracts that contain commitments 1o pay amounts
dependent upon future events. Such amounts, if any, are not determinable by the year end; consequently, no amounts
have been accrued in the financial statements with respect to these commitments,

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

The Company does not enter into off-balance sheet arrangementis with special purpose entities in the normal course of
business.

RELATED PARTY AND OTHER TRANSACTIONS
The Company entered into the following transactions with related and other parties:

a) Paid underwriting and consulting fees of $3.4 million in 2007 {2006 - $2.9 million; 2005 - $0.1 million) 1o Macquarie
Capital Markets Canada Ltd. {"Macguarie”) {formerly Orion Securities Inc.) which retains the Chairman of the
Company as an employee. In February 2008 the Company paid to Macguarie, underwriting fees of $2.3 millien
relating to the public offering of units which closed on February 11, 2008.

b} Paid consulting fees of $0.09 miliion in 2007 to Kingsway Capital of Canada Inc. which retains the Chairman of the
Company as a director,

<) Paid legal fees of $0.7 million in 2005 to a law firm, while a partner of whom was a director of the Company.
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The amounts charged to the Company for the services provided have been determined by negotiation among the parties.
These transactions were in the normal course of operations and were measured at the exchange value which represented
the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

FOURTH QUARTER RESULTS

The Company recorded a net loss in the fourth quarter of 2007 of $8.8 million ({($0.G3) per share) which is principally
attributable to the aggregate of corporate general and administrative costs, interest expense and losses at the El Callao
mining operations.

Revenue from gold sales increased to $4.8 million in the fourth quarter compared to $2.2 million in the third quarter of
2007. The increase in gold sales reflecis higher gold production, which was attributable to mining and processing more
ore, combined with higher ore grades, less stripping and sales of gold to local buyers for higher proceeds rather than to
the Central Bank of Venezuela at the official rate,

Cash flow used in operating activities was a deficit of $3.1 million for the fourth quarter of 2007 as compared with a
deficit of $8.2 million for the third quarter of 2007. The cash flow deficit from operations in the fourth quarter of 2007
was largely attributable to $5.5 million of corporate general and administrative expenses which includes stock
compensation expense of $1 million, $2.0 million loss at El Callao before non cash adjustments, and positive cash flows
oi $4.4 million relating to working capital items.

Expenditures at Las Cristinas totalled $5.5 million during the fourth quarter of 2007. These expenditures were principally
related to operating the Las Cristinas camp and $0.9 million for the acquisitton of additional long tead time equipment.

There was a nominal increase in cash from financing activities due to the exercise of 2,500 stock options in the fourth
quarter of 2007.

The Company conducted a study on s mine closure obligations in &l Callao in the fourth quarter of 2007, This study was
based on closure plans submitted to the Venezuelan authorities in 2007. The plan identified increased obligations relating
to re-vegetation of the tailings dam. Accordingly, this increase plus increased costs for all items identified in the plans
resulted in a $1.0 million increase over the previous year's estimates. Since all of the capital assets at El Callao are written
off due to a lack of reportable reserves to support their carrying values, this increase has been recorded in operations
expense in the fourth quarter of 2007.

As described in detail in the subsequent section on restatement of prior periods, the Company increased the carrying value
of Las Cristinas by $32 million of which $27 million related to the restatement of 2006 balances. Future tax liabilities and
unrealized foreign exchange gains were recorded in the current and prior years as detailed in Notes 10 and 11 to the 2007
Consolidated Financial Statements.

RESTATEMENT OF PREVIOUS 2007 QUARTERS AND DECEMBER 2006 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

During the third quarter of 2007 the Company reviewed the accounting for foreign currency transactions in Venezuela
due to the increasing spread between the official rate and the parallel or market rate in Venezuela. It has been determined
that as a consequence of the rapid decline in the valuation of the Venezuelan Bolivars as reflected in the parallel market
for foreign currencies in Venezuela that the method of translation from Bolivars 1o United States Dollars using the official
rate was no longer appropriate in the circumstances. As a result of this review, management determined that amendments
should be reflected in the previously issued financial statements for the three and six month interim periods ended March
31, 2007 and June 30, 2007, respectively, to account for monetary, income and expense items at the parallel or market
rate prevailing at the respective dates of each.
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During 2007, the Company reviewed its accounting policy relating to the capitalization of interest costs incurred during
the period of development on gualifying mineral properties. As a result of this review, the Company determined that
certain interest costs should be capitalized under U.S. GAAP during the period of construction and development on its Las
Cristinas project. Under Canadian GAAP these costs will continue to be expensed as incurred. Accordingly, note 19 to the
December 31, 2006 audited consolidated financial statements have been restated to give effect to the capitalization of
interest to the qualifying Las Cristinas project. These financial statements have been adjusted and re-issued and the
restated figures have been incorporated in the 2007 consolidated financial statements.

In 2007, the Company reviewed its accounting practices in respect of certain expenditures made in connection with its
Venezuela Branch but funded by its Canadian operations with respect to Las Cristinas. The Company determined that such
expenditures, previously treated as deductible for tax purposes, that have been capitalized in the Canadian operations may
not be deductible in Venezuela thereby creating a difference between their accounting and tax values in Venezuela. For
Canadian GAAP purposes, the amounts determined to be potentially non-deductible as at December 31, 2007 totalled
$52.3 million of which $39.4 miltion related to 2006 and prior years. The Company recorded future tax liabilities of
$14.2 million and $23.5 million in 2007 and 2006, respectively. Due to the decline in the in the parallel rate of the
Venezuelan Bolivars to the USD, there is a resultant unrealized foreign exchange gain on the opening future income tax
liabilities upon revaluation into US dollars. The Company recorded unrealized foreign exchange gains in 2005 and 2004
due to changes in {oreign exchange rates. There were no unrealized foreign exchange gains relating to future tax balances
in 2006 as the foreign exchange rates were the same in 2006 and 2005 result. The Q1, Q2 and Q3 2007 previously
reported net losses have been amended to reflect the effects of unrealized foreign currency translation gains. The Q1 2007
results were significantly impacted due to the change in Bs rate to the USD from 2,150 at December 31, 2006 to 3,650
at March 31, 2007. The rate changed to 4,100, 5,010 and 5,500 at the end of Q2, Q3, and Q4 2007, respectively.
Accordingly, unrealized foreign currency translation gains of $9.3 million, $1.6 miltion, $2.5 million and $1.0 million were
recorded at the end of Q1, Q2, Q3 and Q4 2007, respectively.

The estimated {uture income taxes represent a net accounting entry derived from the current lack of deductibility in the
Venezuela Branch of certain expenditures related to Las Cristinas which were funded by the parent entity in Canada. These
costs will be amortized for accounting purposes but may not be for income tax purposes. Accordingly, the future income
taxes represent an undiscounied estimate of the tax effect of this difference, and therefore are not payable at the present.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Critical accounting estimates are those estimates that have a hign degree of uncertainty and for which changes in those
estimates could materially impact the Company's results. Significant estimates used include those relating to the timing
and receipt of the Las Cristinas Permit to construct, gold prices, recoverable proven and probable reserves, available
resources, available operating capital, fair value of stock options and warrants, income taxes and required asset retirement
obligations. These estimates each affect management’s evaluation of asset impairment and the recorded balances of
inventories, site closure and asset retirement obligations

ADOPTION OF NEW ACCOUNTING POLICIES

On January 1, 2007, the Company adopted three new accounting standards that were issued by the Canadian Institute
of Chartered Accountants, ("CICA"): (i} Handbook Section 1530 Comprehensive Income, (i) Section 3855, Financial
Instruments - Recognition and Measurement, (iii) Section 3865, Hedges. These standards were adopted prospectively, and
accordingly, the comparative amounts for the prior periods have not been restated. There is no material impact to the
Company’s financial statements on adoption of these new standards except for the reclassification of deferred financing
fees as an offset to long-term debt.
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in 2007, the CICA issued Handbook Section 3862, Financial Instruments — Disclosures, and Handbook Section 3863,
Financial Instruments - Presentation, and Handbook Section 1535, Capital Disclosures. Handbook Sections 3862 and 3863
together supersede Handbook Section 3861, Financial Instruments — Disclosure and Presentation and provide disclosure
and presentation reguirements for financia! instruments. Handbook Section 1535, Capital Disclosures specifies the
disclosure of (i} an entity’s objectives, policies and processes for managing capital; (i) quantitative data about what the
entity regards as capital; {iii) whether the entity has complied with any capital requirements; and (iv) if it has not complied,
the consequences of such non compliance. These new standards apgly to interim and annuai financial statements relating
to fiscal years beginning on or after October 1, 2007 with early adoption permitted. The Company has elected to apply
these standards for the year-ended December 31, 2007.

Future accounting pronouncements

The CICA issued new accounting standards 1400, 3031 and 3251 which are effective for interim and annual consolidated
financial statements for the Company's reporting period beginning on January 1, 2008, and 3064 which may affect the
financial disclosures and results of operations of the Company for interim and annual periods beginning January 1, 2009.

The company has not yet assessed the impact of Sections 1400, 3031, 3064 and 3251 on its consolidated financial
statements

Under 3064 and as a result of the withdrawal of EIC 27, the Company will no longer be able io defer costs and revenues )
incurred prior to commercial production at new mine operations.

Refer to Note 3 to the 2007 consolidated financial statements for details of these new accounting standards.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The balance sheet carrying amounts for cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payable and accrued
liabilities approximate fair value due to their short-term nature. The estimated fair value of debt is $82,000,000 {2006:
$84,878,219) and is determined by discounting the contractual cash flows using market interest rates for debt with similar
terms and risks.

OUTSTANDING SHARE DATA

A summary of commeon shares, common share options and common share purchase warrants at March 31, 2008 are
tabled below:

Common Shares Issued 294,670,845
Commen Share Options 12,388,088
Warrants 29,570,000
Fully Diluted Common Shares 336,628,933

CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures which are designed to provide reasonable assurance that
information required to be disclosed by the Company is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time
periods specified by regulations. The Company perfarmed an evaluation, under the supesvision and participation of
management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and
aperation of its disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on this
evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company's disclosure controls and
procedures were not effective as of the end of the period covered by this report due to the reasons described in “Iniernal
Controt Qver Financial Reporting.” The steps taken by management of the Company to address each of these areas of
weakness are also described under the heading “Management’s Plans to Remediate Material Weaknesses” .
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Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting. Any system of internal control over financial reparting, no matter how well designed, has inherent limitations.
Theretfore, even those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect 1o financial
statement preparation and presentation.

As of December 31, 2007, Management evaluated the Company's internal controls over financial reporting (“ICFR*), as
defined under Multilateral Instrument 52-109 - Certification of Disclosure in issuer's Annual and Interim Filings of the
Canadian Securities Administrators. For the purposes of Maragement's evaluation, a weakness in the Company's ICFR
would be considered to be a “material weakness” if the weakness was a significant deficiency, or a combination of
significant deficiencies, that resulted in there being more than a remote likelihnood that a material misstatement of the
annual or interim financial statements would not be prevented or detected on a timely basis by Management or employees
in the normal course of performing their assigned functions.

In making its assessment of the Company’s ICFR as of December 31, 2007, Management used the criteria set forth by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (CQSQ) in Internal Control-integrated Framework.
As of December 31, 2007, Management identified the material weaknesses in the Company's ICFR as described below.

Previously Reported:
Management identified as of December 31, 2006 the following material weaknesses:

1. Override and Monitoring of Established Controls: During the process of review and evaluation, it was deterrmined that
certain weaknesses existed which resulted in local management of the Company’s Venezuelan branch having the
ability to override established internal controls relating 1o the granting of service contracts and approval of completion
of contractual service work. This weakness had the potential to result in material misstatements in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements,

To address this weakness, Management has implemented additional controls around the granting of service contracts
and the required approvals of completion of contractual service wark performed to ensure the completeness and
appropriateness of all amounts recorded in the Company’s conseolidated financial statements. Testing revealed these
new controls were not operating with 100% consistency. We are continuing to educate and emphasize the
importance of these controls,

2. Tax Obligation: Management concluded that, as of December 31, 2006, a weakness existed in JCFR caused by a lack
of competent staff in place at its Venezuelan subsidiaries to ensure the Company appropriately recorded and disclosed
taxation related matters in preparing its consolidated financial statements with respect to various types of tax
obligations in Venezuela.

Management has fully remediated this problem by hiring a qualified tax manager in Venezuela to ensure the
Company's Venezuelan tax obligations are appropriately recorded and disclosed in the Company’s consolidated
financial statements.

3. Complex Accounting Issues — US GAAP: Management had concluded that, as of December 31, 2006, the Company
did not have adequate levels of expertise with respect 10 US GAAP complex accounting issues. This weakness has the
potential to result in material misstatements in the Company’s US GAAP reconciliation note in its financial statements.

Management has fully remediated this weakness through the hiring of qualified staff with proficiency and experience
in US GAAF. Staff is being supported in their professional development activities to gain additional competence in tJS
GAAP. The Company has made arrangements to access appropriate external advisors to review on an as needed basis
all US GAAP accounting matters relating 1o the Company’s consolidated financiat statements.
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4. Segregation of Duties: During the process of review and evaluation Management concluded that, as of December 31,
2006, a weakness existed in ICFR caused by a lack of adequate segregation of duties in the preparation, review and
approval of subsidiary operating results which are included in the Company's consolidated financial statements.

Management has fully remediated this weakness by hiring additional competent staff at the subsidiary level and
changing the review and approval procedures in the preparation of subsidiary operating resutts. Management
continugs to perform additional procedures in relation to the subsidiary operating results included in the
Company's consolidated financial statements.

Current Year:

As enunciated below, the Company has determined that internal contrel over financial reporting was not effective in
preventing possible material misstatements without further substantive work. Accordingly, additional substantive
procedures were applied subsequently to provide assurance that such misstaternents do not exist, and accordingly believes
that the consolidated financial statements are now free from material misstatements. In addition, the Company has
commenced a number of remediation steps to rectify such weaknesses in order to diminish the possibility of a material
misstatement in 2008. These are outlined below.

Management has identified as of December 31, 2007 the following material weaknesses:

(a} There are insufficient controls to monitor and prevent the override of established controls at the Company’s
subsidiaries with respect 1o existing policies and procedures, communication of the delegation of authonty and the
timeliness of financial analysis and reporting, primarily in remote locations.

(b} The Company did not consistensly maintain implementation of effective controls over the purchasing function relaiing
to the documentation of the arrangements with certain suppliers at the parent entity level and the authorization and
approval of both suppliers and services at remote locations.

() The Company did not design and maintain effective controls over the identification and recognition of timing
differences in accounting for future income taxes. This resulted in an audit adjustment to the Company's December
31, 2007 consolidated financial statements and the restatement of the Company's December 31, 2006 and 2005
consolidated financial statements with respect to mineral properties, future income taxes and operations.

Each of these material weaknesses could result in a material misstaternent to the Company’s annual consolidated financial
statements that would not be prevented or detecied. Material weaknesses (a) and {b) noted above could also result in
unauthorized acquisition, use, or dispasition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated
financial statements.

As a result of the material weaknesses described above, Management has concluded that, as at December 31, 2007, the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting was not effective.

The effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as at December 31, 2007 has been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, our independent auditors, as stated in their report which appears herein.

Management’s Plans to Remediate Material Weaknesses

Management, under the Board's direction, has undertaken significant additional work to ensure the consalidated financiat
statements are free from material misstatement that may not have been prevented or detected as a result of the material
weaknesses noted. Furthermare, Management has identified and commenced the implementation of additionat internal
control procedures, particularly in remote locations, 1o ensure the acquisition, use or disposal of the Company’s assets are
appropriately authorized.
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Management has taken the following steps to address the weaknesses identified:

{a) Monitoring and override of established controls: Management continues to work with the subsidiary managers,
particularly at remote locations, 1o ensure corporate policies and internal control procedures are respecied by all and
information is provided on a timely basis. Training and coordination of activities amongst the senior managers of the
subsidiaries is ongoing.

(b} Controls over the purchasing function: Management has begun a process of renewing and updating the physical
documentary support for existing service providers and suppliers and establishing a regimen of pre-qualifying
potential new service providers and suppliers. Management has implemented additional controls at the subsidiary
level to ensure appropriate approval and timely autherization of suppliers. We are continuing to reinforce compliance
with these controis.

{c} Controls over accounting for income tax timing differences: Management continues to work with independent expert
agvisors, in both Canada and Venezuela, to ensure the timely identification of those items giving rise to timing
differences for income tax purposes. Management has implemented controls to ensure the valuation basis, for both
accounting and tax reporting purposes, of the Company's assets, is identified, recorded and retained for financial
reporting purposes.

RISK FACTORS

The business and operations of the Company and its affiliates are subject to risks. In addition to considering the other
information in the Company's 2007 Annual Information Form, which is available on SEDAR at www sedar.com, an investor
should carefully consider the following factors. Any of the following risks could have a material adverse effect on the
Company, its business and future prospects.

Risks Associated with Operating in Developing Countries

The Corporation's mineral exploration and rmining operations are located in Venezuela and may be adversely afiected by
political instability and legal and economic uncertainty that might exist in such country. The risks associated with the
Cerporation’s foreign operations may include political unrest, labour disputes, invalidation of governmental orders,
permits, agreements or property rights, risk of corruption including violations under U.S. and Canadian foreign corrupt
practices statutes, military repression, war, civil disturbances, criminal and terrorist actions, arbitrary changes in laws,
regulations and policies, taxation, price controls, exchange controls, delays in obtaining or the inabitity to obtain necessary
permits, opposition to mining from environmental or other non-governmental organizations, limitations on foreign
ownership, limitations on the repatriation of earnings, limitations on mineral exports, high rates of inflation and increased
financing costs. These risks may limit or disrupt the Corporation’s projects or operations, restrict the movement of funds
ar result in the deprivation of contractual rights or the taking of property by nationalization, expropriation or other means
without fair compensation.

Risks Specific to Operations in Venezuela
Political and Economic Instability

The Corporation’s mineral properties are located in Venezuela and as such the Carporation may be affected by political or
economic instabilities there, The risks associated with carrying on business in Venezuela, in addition to those highlighted
above, include, but are not himited to viotent crime, whith is prevalent throughout the country and includes kidnapping,
smuggling and drug trafficking especially in remote areas. Changes in resource development or investment policies or
shifts in political attitudes in Venezuela may adversely affect the Corporation’s business. Operations may be affected in
varying degrees by government regulations with respect to restrictions in production, price controls, export controls,
exchange controls, income taxes, expropriation of property, maintenance of claims, envirecnmental legislation, land use,
unauthorized mining activities, land claims of local peaple, water use and mine safety. The effect of these factors cannot
be accurately predicted.
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Environmental Permit Still Required

MIBAM completed its overall approval process of Las Cristinas on March 26, 2006. On June 14, 2007 the Company
announced that it received written notice from the CVG that all the requirements for the issuance of the Las Cristinas
Permit from MinAmb had been fulfitled. The CVG confirmed that MinAmb's approval of the Las Cristinas Enviranmental
Impact Study, together with Crystallex’s payment of certain taxes and posting of a Compliance Guarantee Bond, as
requested by MinAmb, represented the final steps in the process for the issue of the Permit. CVG' notice to the Company
was based on a farmal notice the CVG recaived from MinAmb, which stated that the Permit would be issued following
the payment of the taxes and the posting of the bond. Development of Las Cristinas and the ultimate commencement of
commercial production are dependent upon receipt of the Permit, which will allow the Corporation to proceed to put in
place financing to fund construction. As the Las Cristinas project is the Corporation’s primary project, the continued delay
in receipt of the Permit could have a material adverse effect on the future of the Corporation’s business, and may result
in the need for additional financing. There can be no assurance as to when or if the Permit will be granted.

Exchange Controls

Venezuela currently has exchange controls that affect the ability of companies doing business in Venezuela to convert
Venezuelan source income into foreign currency. The Central Bank of Venezuela enacted such exchange control measures
in 2003 in order to protect international reserves. The exchange sate, originafly fixed at approximately 1.6 Bolivars /U.5.$,
has since been adjusted twice upwards and presently stands fixed at 2.15 Bolivars/U.S.$. There can be no assurance that
exchange controls will not continue and, if they do, that they will not adversely affect the Corporation’s operations,
including its ability to satisfy its foreign currency obligations.

Mining Operation Contract
Lack of Ownership Rights

Under the Venezuelan Mining Law of 1999 ("VML“), all mineral resources belong to the Republic of Venezuela. In
accordance with the VML, the Government of Venezuela has reserved for itself the right to directly explore and exploit the
Las Cristinas deposits and has elected to do so through the CVG. See “Las Cristinas Project - Mining Operation Contract”
in the AIF. The Mining Operation Contract is an operation agreement and does nat transfer any property ownership rights
or title rights to the gold produced to the Corporation. Rather, the Corporation has been authorized to exploit the
Las Cristinas deposits for the CVG in accardance with the Mining Operation Contract, The interests of the Corporation in
the Las Cristinas deposits are contingent upon the Corparation continuing to satisfy its obligations under the Mining
Operation Contract. Failure to do so could result in the CVG having the right to terminate the Mining Operation Contract.
In additian, the CVG is party to an agreement dated May 16, 2002 with MIBAM. As the CVG's rights thereunder are
contingent upon the CVG continuing to satisfy its obligations, while the Corparation has no reason to believe the CVG is
not performing its obligations thereunder, any failure to do so could result in MIBAM having the right to terminate such
agreement, thereby effectively terminating the Mining Operation Contract,

Lack of Copper Rights

In addition to gold, the Las Cristinas deposits alse contain very low levels of copper, 0.11% on average. Under the Mining
Operation Contract, the Carporation is only entitled to exploit the go!d contained in the tas Cristinas deposits. Based on
the feasibility studies carried out by the Corporation and following discussions with the CVG, the Corporation has
determined that exploiting the copper contained in the Las Cristinas deposits would detract from the economics of the
Las Cristinas project. Furthermore, it may not be technically viable to produce a marketable copper concentrate from the
main Las Cristinas deposit as the copper is too low grade. The Corporation does not need the right to exploit the copper
contained in the Las Cristinas deposits in order to exploit the gold and does not currently intend to negotiate with the
CVG for the right to exploit the copper contained in the Las Cristinas deposits.

Although the Corporation does not believe that the MiBAM would do so, the MIBAM retains the right to grant exploitation
and other rights with respect to the copper contained in the Las Cristinas deposits to the CVG or a third party. The
Corporation has been advised by its Venezuelan counsel that:
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(a) if the MIBAM grants the right to exploit the copper contained in the Las Cristinas deposits to the CVG, subject to
fulfilling alt necessary requirements of Venezuelan law (including the additionat grant by the MIBAM to the CVG of
the right to negotiate the exploitation of the copper with third parties), the CVG has agreed under the terms of the
Mining Operation Contract to negotiate the exploitation of the copper with the Corporation; and

(b) if the MIBAM grants the right to exploit the copper contained in the Las Cristinas deposits to a third party, the
Corporation's right under the Mining Operation Contract to exploit the gold contained in the Las Cristinas depaosits
woutd, as a matter of Venezuelan law, take precedence over the third party’s right to exploit the copper.

If the MIBAM grants the right to exploit the copper contained in the Las Cristinas deposits to the CVG, there can be no
assurance that the MIBAM will grant 1o the CVG the additional right to negotiate the exploitation of the copper with third
parties or that the Corporation will be able to negotiate an agreement with respect to the exploitation of the copper with
the CVG, Also, if the MIBAM grants the right to exploit the copper contained in the Las Cristinas deposits to a third party,
or if the MIBAM grants the right to exploit the copper contained in the Las Cristinas deposits to the CVG and the CVG
granis the right to exploit the copper to a third party, there can be no assurance that the Corporation will be successful
under Venezuelan law in asserting that its right to exploit the gold contained in the Las Cristinas deposits takes precedence
over the third party’s right to exploit the copper.

Proposed Amendments to Mining Laws

The Corporation’s business may be affected by amendments or changes 1o mining laws, regulations and requirements in
venezuela. At any time, a number of draft mining laws may be proposed. There is no assurance when or if a draft mining
bill will be enacted into law or whas the final provisions of such taw will be, if enacted. Any changes to current Venezuelan
mining law may adversely affect the Corporation’s ability to develop and operate the Corporation’s Venezuelan properties,

On February 1, 2007 the National Assembly of the Republic of Venezuela issued the "Law which Authorizes the President
of the Republic to Issue Decrees with Rank and Force of Law in those Matters Delegated” (the "Decree Law"), which
empowers the President of Venezuela to approve changes to certain laws without consuiting Congress for a period of
18 months. The Decree Law does not include any direct mention of, or references to, mining matters and, accordingly,
such matters remain within the exclusive competence of the National Assembly. In order for amendments to the mining
law 1o be enacted into law, it must be accepted in the Venezuelan National Assembly and undergo a review by the
Permanent Commission of Energy and Mines. The detailed provisions of the Draft Mining Bill are then debated in the
National Assembly, and finally the Draft Mining Bill must be approved by the President of Venezuela. There is no assurance
that the Government of Venezuela will not issue further decrees or otherwise attempt to modify existing mining rights or
other laws affecting the Corporation, its Venezuelan properties and its ability to operate in Venezuela.

Arbitration Proceedings

The Corporation is a party that is interested in, but is not a party to, an ongoing arbitration, See "legal Proceedings -
Withdrawal of MINCA Litigation - Vanessa Arbitration” in the AIF, available electronically at www.sedar.com and
WWW.5eC.gOV.

Sale of Gold

For the past several years, the Corporation sold all of its Venezuefan gold production to the Central Bank of Venezuela. In
June 2006, the Central Bank of Venezuela informed the Corporation it was suspending purchase of gold from the
Corporation. During June and July, the Corporation sold gold to accredited third parties within Venezuela and in August
2006 the Central Bank resumed purchasing gold from the Corporation and continued to purchase all of the Corporation’s
gold producticn through the end of the third quarter of 2007. In October 2007, the Corporation began selling all of its
gold production to accredited third parties in Venezuela, The Corporation is updating the registration of its export licence
which will also allow it to export and sell gold outside of Venezuela. Pending the update of the Corporation's export
licence, should the Corporation be unable to sell gold within Venezuela, it could have an adverse effect on the
Corporation’s revenues, cash flow and profitability in the short-term.
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Unauthorized Miners

The Corparation’s operations may also be affected by the presence of unautharized miners which is not uncommaon in the
gold mining areas of the Guyana Shield area of northern South America, including Venezuela. The methods used by
unauthorized miners to extract gold are typically harmful to the environment and may be disruptive of authcrized mining
operations. Although the Corporation, in conjunction with the local authaorities, employs strategies to control the presence
of unauthorized miners, there can be no assurance that these strategies will be successful or that the Corporation’s
operations will not be adversely affected by the presence of unautherized miners,

Imataca Forest Reserve

In addition to the general risks associated with envirenmental regulation and liability, the Las Cristinas deposits are located
within the Imataca Forest Reserve (the "Forest Reserve”). On September 22, 2004, Presidential Decree 3110, which
establishes an ordinance plan and regulations for the use of the Forest Reserve, permits various activities {including mining)
in up t0 13% of the Forest Reserve and establishes the legal framework for such activities, was issued. Presidential Decree
3110 was issued in response to previous Presidential Decree 1850, the latter of which was issued in May 1997. Decree
1850 reserved an even larger part of the Forest Reserve for various activities and became subject to a legal challenge before
the Venezuelan Supreme Court. The Venezuelan Supreme Court issued a prohibition order on November 11, 1997
prohibiting the refevant government authorities from granting concessions, authorization and any oiher acts relating to
various mining activities in the Forest Reserve under Decree 1850 until the Venezuelan courts ruled on the merits of the
nullity action, It is possible that Presidential Decree 3110 could be similarly challenged and that such chailenge, if ultimately
successiul, could prevent the Corporation from exploiting or fully exploiting the Las Cristinas deposits.

Venezuelan Decree No. 1257 establishes the environmental assessment requirements for mining projects. The Corporation
was advised that the Las Cristinas project is not a new project and, accordingly, Article 40 of Decree 1257 does not apply
since no significant increase in environmental impact is predicted.

General Risk Factors
Title to Mineral Properties

Acquisition of title to mineral properties is a very detailed and time-consuming process. Title to, and the area of, mineral
properties may be disputed or impugned. Although the Corperation has investigated its title to the mineral properties for
which it holds concessions or mineral leases or licenses, there can be no assurance that the Corporation has valid title to
such mineral properties or that its title thereto will not be challenged or impugned. For example, mineral properties
sometimes contain claims or transfer histories that examiners cannot verify; and transfers under foreign law often are
complex. The Corperation does not carry title insurance with respect to its mineral properties. A successful claim that the
Corporation does not have title to a mineral property could cause the Corporation 1o ose its rights to mine that property,
perhaps without compensation for its prior expenditures relating to the property, Furthermore, the Mining Operation
Contract does not transfer any property ownership rights to the Corporation,

in 2005 the Government of Venezuela announced that it would be changing the mining title regime from a system where
title was granted in the form of joint ventures or either concessions or operating contracts to a system where all new
economic interests would be granted in the form of operating contracts. In order to effect this change, the Government
advised that it would need to create a national mining company which would be the nation's contracting party covering
the entire country of Venezuela. The Government aiso indicated that, given this change in title regime, it would also be
appropriate to review all existing mining companies in a single comprehensive exercise to ensure that only companies
found to be in compliance with their existing title terms and conditions would qualify for the new title. This review was
completed as of December 31, 2005. MIBAM completed its approval process for the Las Cristinas project at the end of
March 2006. The Ministry of the Environment and Natural Resources (“MinAmb*“) approved the tas Cristinas EIS in June
2007; and, based on this approval, the Corporation posted a Compliance Guarantee Bond and paid certain surface taxes.
However, there is no assurance that the Government will not issue further decrees or otherwise attempt to modify existing
mining rights.
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Environmental Requlation and Liability

The Corporation’s activities are subject to laws and regulations controliing not only mineral exploration and exploitation
activities themselves but also the possible effects of such activities upon the environment. Environmental legislation may
change and make the mining and processing of ore uneconomic or result in significant environmental or reclamation costs.
Environmental legislation provides for restrictions and prohibitions on spills, releases or emissions of various substances
produced in association with certain mineral exploitation activities, such as seepage from tailings disposal areas that could
result in environmental pollution. A breach of environmenial legislation may result in the imposition of fines and penatties
or the suspension or closure of operations. In addition, certain types of operations require the submission of environmental
impact statements and approval thereof by government authorities. Environmental legislation is evolving in a manner
which may mean stricter standards and enforcement, increased fines and penalties for non-compliance, more stringent
environmental assessments of proposed projects and a heightened degree of responsibility for companies and their
directors, officers and employees. Permits from a variety of regulatory authorities are required for many aspects of mineral
exploitation activities, including closure and reclamation. Future environmental legislation could cause additional expense,
capital expenditures, restrictions, liabilities and delays in the development of the Corporation’s properties, the extent of
which cannot be predicted.

In the context of environmental permits, in particular the approval of closure and reclamation plans, the Corporation must
comply with standards and laws and requlations which may entaif costs and delays depending on the nature of the activity
to be permitted and how stringently the regulations are implemented by the permitting authority. In accordance with
applicable laws, the Corporation has provided various forms of financial assurances to cover the cost of reclamation
activities. However, there can be no assurance that the Corporation will not incur reclamation costs that are in excess of
such financial assurances. While the Corporation plans to establish a reserve for reclamation activities, there can be no
assurance that the combination of the reserve and financial assurances will be sufficient to meet future reclamation
standards, if such standards are materially more stringent than existing standards. The Corporation does not maintain
environmentai liability insurance. The Corporation has adopted high standards of environmental compliance; however,
failure with or unanticipated changes in Venezuela’s laws and regulations pertaining to the protection of the environment
in the future could adversely affect the Corporation.

Additional Funding Requirements

Under the terms of the Mining Operation Contract, the Corporation is required, among other things, to make all necessary
investments and complete all works necessary to reactivaie the Las Cristinas deposits, to design, construct and operate a
processing plant to process gold for its subsequent commercialization and sale and to return the mine, its installations and
equipment to the CVG upen termination of the Mining Operation Contract. In order to carry out the Las Cristinas project
and its other mining projects, the Corporation wilt need to raise substantial addit:anal financing. in establishing its funding
requirements, the Corporation has assumed that costs incurred during the construction phase of Las Cristinas will receive
an exoneration from the 9% Value Added Tax {*VAT"). Venezuelan Law ailows for but does not guarantee the granting
of exoneration of VAT on goods and services, induding expenses in Venezuela, related to the construction and
development of mining projects. Crystallex will apply for an exoneration of VAT during the construction phase of
Las Cristinas. If the Corporation does not receive the construction period VAT exoneration, sufficient additional funds
would need to be raised to cover the development phase. The construction period VAT can then be recovered by the
Corporation during the production phase of the Las Cristinas project.

The Corporation may decide to meet its additional funding requirements through one or more of non-recourse project
debt and other forms of public markets debt and eguity. If the Corporation elecis to raise commercial bank limited recourse
project debt, the Corporation will need 10 demonstrate to potential lenders compliance with the Equator Principles, which
are a set of guidelines adopted by a number of international financing institutions to address the environmental and social
issues associated with project financing transactions. The Equator Principles are largely based on policies and guidelines
established by the International Finance Corporation. Although the Corporation has completed an Environmental Impact
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Study to international standards, which was approved by the Venezuelan Ministry of the Environment and includes plans
to comply with the Equator Principles, there can be no assurances that potential lenders will conclude that the project is
in compliance with the Equator Principles. In this case, some institutions may decide not to lend to the project, or the
financing timeline may be extended while the Corporation addresses the concerns of the banks.

Despite the financings that have been completed by the Corporation, the Corporation has limited access to financial
respurces and there can be no assurance that sufficient additional financing will be available to the Corporation on
acceptable terms or at all. Failure to obtain such additional financing could result in a delay or the indefinite postponement
of the Las Cristinas project and other mining projects of the Corporation and could also result in the Corporation
defaulting in the performance of its obfigations under the Mining Operation Contract.

Reserve and Resource Estimates

The Corparation’s reported mineral reserves and resources are estimates only. As a result, there can be no assurance that
they will be recovered at the rates estimated or at all. Mineral reserve and resource estimates are based on limited sampling
and are uncertain because the samples may not be representative. Mineral reserve and resource estimates may require
revision (either up or down) based on actual production experience. Market fluctuations in the price of metals, increased
production costs or reduced recovery rates may render estimated mineral reserves and resources uneconomic and may
ultimately result in a restaterent of mineral reserves and resources. In addition, short-term operating factors, such as the
need for sequential development of mineral deposits and the processing of new or different ore grades, may adversely
affect the Corporation’s profitability in any particular accounting period. 1f its mineral reserve and resource esiimates are
incorrect, the Corporation will not correctly allocate its financial resources, causing it either to spend too much on what
could be a less than economic deposit or to fail to mine what could be a significant deposit.

Mineral Exploration and Exploitation

Minera! exploration and exploitation involves a high degree of risk. Few properties that are explored are uhltimately
developed into producing mines. Unusual or unexpected formations, formation pressures, fires, power outages, labour
disruptions, flooding, exptosions, tallings impoundment failures, cave-ins, landslides and the inability to obtain adequate
machinery, equipment or labour are some of the risks involved in mineral exploration and exploitation activities. The
Corporation has relied on and may continue to rely on consultants and others for mineral exploration and exploitation
expertise. Substantial expenditures are required to establish mineral reserves and resources through drilling, to develop
metallurgical processes to extract the metal from the material processed and, in the case of new properties, to develop
the mining and processing facilities and infrastructure at any site chosen for mining. There can be no assurance that the
Corporation will discover mineral reserves and resources in sufficient quantities to justify exploitation or that the funds
required to exploit any mineral reserves and resources discovered by the Corporation will be obtained on a timely basis or
at all. The economics of exploiting mineral reserves and resources discovered by the Corporation are affected by many
factors, many outside the control of the Corporation, including the cost of operations, variations in the grade of material
mined and metals recovered, price fluctuations in the metal markets, costs of processing equipment, continuing access 1o
smelter facilities on acceptable terms and other factors such as government regulations, including regulations relating to
royalties, allowable production, importing and experting of minerals and envircnmentat protection. There can be no
assurance that the Corporation’s mineral exploration and exploitation activities will be successful.

Uninsurable Risks

Mineral exploration and exploitation activities involve numerous risks, including unexpected or unusual geological
operating conditions, rock bursts, cave-ins, fires, floods, earthquakes and other envirenmental occurrences and political
and social instability. It is not always possible to obtain insurance against all such risks and the Corporation may decide
not to insure against certain risks as a result of high premiums or other reasons. Should such liabilities arise, they could
negatively affect the Corporations profitability and financial position and the value of the common shares of the
Corporation. The Corporation does not maintain insurance against environmental risks.
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Competition

The competition to discover and acquire mineral properties considered to have commercial potential is intense. The
Corporation competes with other mining companies, many of which have greater financial resources than the
Corporation, with respect to the discovery and acquisition of interests in mineral properties and the recruitment and
retention of qualified employees and other personnel to carry on its mineral exploration and exploitation activities. There
can be no assurance that the Corporation will be able to successfully compete against such companies.

Dependence on Limited Mining Operations and Properties

The Corporation’s Tomi and La Victoria aperations and Revemin mill currently account for all of the Corporation’s mineral
production and revenues. Any adverse development affecting these operations could adversely affect the Corporation’s
financial performance and results of operations. Furthermore, future results for the Corporation depend largely on the Las
Cristinas project, which is currently in the development stage and which may never be developed into a commercially
viable mining operation. Any event, or combination thereof, which adversely affects the Las Cristinas project {whether the
property itself or the Corporation’s ability to finance and/ar construct and operate a commercially viable mine on the
property)', would adversely impact the Corporation’s future performance.

Production Risks

The Carporation prepares estimates of future production at its operations. Failure to meet these estimates could adversely
affect the corporation’s profitability, cash flows and financial position. There can be no assurance that the Corporation will
achieve its production estimates.

The Corporation’s actual production may vary from its estimates for a variety of reasons, including actual ore mined varying
from estimates of grade, tonnage, dilution and metallurgical and other characteristics; short-term operating factors such
as the need for sequential development of ore bodies and the pracessing of new or different are grades from those
planned; mine failures, slope failures or equipment failures; industnal accidents; natural phenomena such as inclement
weather conditions, floods, droughts, rock slides and earthquakes; encountering unusual or unexpected geological
conditions; changes in power cosis and potential power shortages; shortages of principal supplies needed for operation,
including explosives, fuels, chemical reagents, water, equipment parts and lubricants; labour shortages or strikes; civil
disobedience and protests; and restrictions or regulations imposed by governmental or regutatory authorities or other
changes in the regulatory environments. Such occurrences could result in damage 1o mineral properties, interruptions in
production, injury or death to persons, damage to property of the Corporation or oihers, manetary losses and legal
liabilities. These factors may cause a mineral deposit that has been mined profitably in the past to become unprofitable
forcing the Corporation to cease production. These factors also apply to the Corporation’s future operations. For example,
it is not unusual for new mining and processing operations 10 experience unexpected problems during the start-up phase.

In additton to the general production risks ouslined above, one of the maost significant physical production issues the
Corporation faces in the Las Cristinas project pertains to the heavy amount of rainfall the area receives (an average of
3.3 m#year). MDA has accounted for anticipated time lost due io rainfall in scheduling production and determining
equipment requirements. Crystallex believes that the allowances made are consistent with the range of practice employed
by the iron ore and bauxite mining industry in the same high rainfall regions in Venezuela as well as comparable mining
operations in similar or greater rainfall regions of Guyana, Suriname and Brazil. Regardless, actual mining experience with
the combination of wet saprolite and high rainfall rates may require adjustment of these estimates.

Regulfations and Permits

The Corporation's activities are subject to wide variety of laws and regulations governing health and worker safety,
employment standards, waste disposal, protection of the environment, protection of historic and archaeological sites, mine
development and protection of endangered and protected species and other matters. The Corporation is reguired o have
a wide variety of permits from governmenta! and regulatory authorities to carry out its activities. These permits relate to
virtually every aspect of the Corporation’s exploration and exploitation activities. Changes in these laws and regulations or
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changes in their enforcement or interpretation could result in changes in legal requirements or in the terms of the
Corporation’s permits that could have a significant adverse impact on the Corporation’s existing or future operations or
projects. Obtaining permits can be a complex, time-consuming process. There can be no assurance that the Corporation
will be able to obtain the necessary permits including any renewals thereof on acceptable terms, in a timely manner or at
all. The costs and delays associated with obtaining permits and complying with these permits and appficable laws and
regulations could stop or materially delay or restrict the Corporation from continuing or proceeding with existing or future
operations or projects. Any failure to comply with permits and applicable laws and regulations, even if inadvertent, could
result in the interruption or closure of operations or material fines, penalties or other liabilities.

Gold Price Volatility

The gold price can fluctuate widely and is affected by numerous factors beyond the Corporation’s control, including
industrial and jewellery demand, inflation and expectations with respect to the rate of inflation, the strength of the U.5.
dolfar and other currencies, interest rates, gold sales by central banks, forward sales by producers, global or regional
political or financial events, and production and cost levels in major gold-producing regions. The gold price is also subject
to rapid short-term changes due to speculative activities. During the period 1998 to 2007, the gold price fluctuated
between a fow of U5.9253 per cunce and a high of U.5.$841 per ounce. To date in 2008 the price of gold has attained
U.5.%1,000 per ounce.

The Corpaoration's revenues, cash flow, profitability and the market price of the common shares of the Corparation are
significantly affected by changes in the gold price. If the gold price is below the cost of production at any of the
Corporation's operations for a significant period, the Cerporation may be required to suspend or terminate production at
the affected operation. In addition, the Cerporation may be required to restate its mineral reserves and resources, write
down its investment and increase or accelerate reclamation and closure charges at the affected operation. Any of these
developments could negatively affect the Corporation's profitability, cash flows and financial position. Accordingly, even if
the Corporation discovers and produces gold, there can be no assurance that the gald price will be high enough to enable
the Corporation to sell the gold produced by i1 profitably.

Currency Fluctuations

Currency fluctuations may affect costs at the Corporation’s operations, Gold is sold throughout the world based principally
on a U.S. doilar price, but a portion of the Corporation’s operating expenses is in non-U.S. dollar currencies. Any
appreciation of these non-U.5. dollar currencies against the U.S. dollar could negatively affect the Corporation’s
profitabitity, cash flows and financial position.

Credit and Market Risks

The Corporation enters into financial agreements {financial instruments) with major international banks, other
international financial institutions and other accradited third parties in order to manage underlying revenue and future
cash flow exposures arising from commodity prices. Financial instruments, which subject the Corporation to market risk
and concentrations of credit risk, consist primarily of cash and accounts receivable.

Market risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument might be adversely affected by a change in interest rates or
currency exchange rates. The Corporation manages the market risk associated with commaodity prices by establishing and
monitoring parameters that limit the types and degree of market risk that may be undertaken.

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty might fail to fulfilt its performance abligations under the terms of a contract. The
Corporation limits the amount of credit exposure in cash and cash eguivalents by placing these in high quality securities
issued by government agencies and financial institutions. The Corporatien’s cash equivalents consist of Government of
Canada Treasury Bilis, denominated in U.S. doMlars. The Corporation also has concentrations of credit risk with respect to
accounts receivable as the accounts receivable are due from the Venezuelan Tax Department and occasionally from the
Venezuelan Central Bank.
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The Corporation can be exposed to credit risk in the event of non-performance by counterparties in connection with metal
forward and option contracts. The Corporation does not obtain any security (o support financial instruments subject to
credit risk but mitigates this risk by dealing only with a diverse group of financially sound counterparties and, accordgingly,
does not anticipate loss for non-performance. Further, the Corporation minimizes its credit risk in derivative instruments
by entering into transactions with high-quality counterparties whose credit ratings are high and by menitoring the financial
condition of its counterparties. The Corporation continually monitors the market risk of its activities. The Corporation
currently does not have metal forward and option contracs.

Dependence on Key Employees

The Corporation’s business and operations are dependenit on retaining the services of a small number of key management
personnel. The success of the Corporation is, and will continue to be, to a significant extent, dependent on the expertise
and experience of the directors and senior management. The loss of one or more of these people could have a materially
adverse effect on the Corporation. Further delays in obtaining the Permit may make it more difficult for the Corporation
to retain key employees. The Corporation does not have a senior management retention program.

Compliance with Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Passed by the U.S. Congress on July 30, 2002, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (”Sarbanes-Oxley”} requires companies to,
among other things, have management provide a report on the Company's internal cantrols with respect 1o financial
reporting. The Company has complied with this particular aspect of Sarbanes-Oxley for its fiscal year ended December 31,
2007. Management’s evaluation of, and report on, the Company's internal controls over financial reporting is set out in
this Management Discussion and Analysis under the section Controls and Procedures - internal Control over Financial
Reporting. Based on this evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Cfficer concluded that the Company’s
disclosure controls and procedures were not effective and the Cerporatian has described the plans to remediate the
material weaknesses described therein,

There can be no assurance that the Corporation will be able to adequately remediate its currently known weaknesses or
that the Corporation’s internal controls over financial reporting will be free of material weaknesses in future periods, which
could cause the market price of the Corporation’s common shares to decline and could lead to shareholder litigation, In
addition, the discovery of additional material weaknesses will likely result in the Corporation having to incur costs to fix
the internal controls for financial reporting as well as costs to remediate any financial inaccuracies. Managerment is in the
process of remediating the material weaknesses discovered in fiscal 2007. The aggregate final costs of addressing such
weaknesses, however, cannot be assured. Any remediation costs for the discovery of additional materiaf weaknesses in
future periods are unknown.

Common Share Price Volatility

The market price of the common shares of the Corporation could fluctuate significantly based on a number of {actors in
addition to those listed in this document, including:

* the Corporation’s operating performance and the performance of competitors and other similar companies;

* the public’s reaction to the Corporation’s press releases, other public announcements and the Corporation’s filings
with the various securities requlatory authorities;

* changes in earnings estimates or recommendations by research analysts who track the common shares or the shares
of other companies in the resource sector;

= changes in general economic conditions;

* the number of the commaon shares to be publicly traded after this offering;

¢ the arrival or departure of key personnel;

*  acquisitions, strategic alliances or joint ventures involving the Corparation or its competitors; and

s gold price volatility.
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In addition, the market price of the common shares of the Corporation are affected by many variables not directly related
to the Corporation’s success and are, therefore, not within the Corporation’s control, including other developments that
affect the market for all resource sector shares, the breadth of the public market for the common shares and the
attractiveness of alternative investments. The effect of these and other factors on the market price of common shares on
the exchanges on which the Corporation trades has historically made the Corporation’s share price volatite and suggests
that the Corporation’s share price will continue to be volatile in the future.

Potential Difution

As at March 28, 2008, the Corporation has outstanding options 1o purchase 12,388,088 common shares of the
Corpaoration (including 1,094,333 options outstanding that were not fully vested) and warrants to purchase 29,570,000
common shares of the Corporation {including 12,250,000 warrants that do not become effective until after the receipt of
the Permit}. The issue of common shares of the Corporation upon the exercise of the options and warrants will ditute the
ownership interest of the Corporation’s current shareholders. The Corporation may also issue additional option and
warrants or additional common shares from time to time in the future. If it does so, the ownership interest of the
Corporation’s then current shareholders could also be diluted.

Enforcement by Investors of Civil Liabilities

The enforcement by investors of civil liabilities under United States federal securities laws may be adversely affected by
the fact that the Corporation is organized under the laws of Canada, that most of its officers and directors and most of
the experts named in this Annual Information Form are residents of Canada, and that a substantial portion of the
Corporation’s assets and the assets of a majority of the Corporation's directors and officers and the experts named in this
Annual Information Form are located outside the United States. Furthermore, it may not be possible to enforce against the
Corporation or its directors, officers or experts, judgments contained in U.S. courts. The Corporation believes that a
monetary judgment of a Canadian court predicated solely on the Canadian civil liability regime would likely be enforceable
in the U.5. if the Canadian court in which the judgment was obtained had a basis for jurisdiction in the matter that was
recognized by a U.S. court for such purposes. However, the Corporation can provide no assurances to this effect.

Operating Losses are Expected to Continue In the Near Future

The Corporation expects that it will continue o incur losses, and possibly incur increased losses, untif the Las Cristinas mine
is operating at full capacity. The Corporations profitability depends, ameng other things, on the gold price, gold
production and cash operating costs at its operations, interest expense and general and administrative expenses.
Substantially all of these factors are beyond the control of the Corporation. There can be no assurance that the
Corporation will become profitable in the near future. The Corporation expects that this trend will reverse if and when
gold is produced from the future Las Cristinas mine in commercial quantities at prices equal to or in excess of the prices
assumed in the 20,000 TPD Feasibility Study.

Future Hedging Activities

The Corporation has not entered inta forward contracts or other derivative instruments to sell gold that it might produce
in the future. Although the Corporation has no near term plans 1o enter such transactions, it may do so in the future if
required for project financing. Forward contracts obligate the holder to sell hedged production at a price set when the
holder enters into the contract, regardless of what the price is when the product is actually mined. Accordingly, there is a
risk that the price of the product is higher at the time it is mined than when the Corporation entered into the contracts,
s0 that the product must be sold at a price lower than could have been received if the contract was not entered. There is
also the risk that the Corporation may have insufficient gold production to deliver into forward sales positions. The
Corporation may enter into option contracts for gold to mitigate the effects of such hedging.
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No Payment of Cash Dividends in the Near Future

Given that the Corporation is currently in the development stage for its principal property, the Las Cristinas project, the
Corporation intends to retain its earning to finance the growth and development of the business rather than pay dividends
to shareholders. The Corpoeration does not intend to declare or pay cash dividends in the near future, nor has it done so
since its inception. In the event that the Corporation decides to declare and pay cash dividends in the future, such a
decision will made entirely in the discretion of the board of directors and shall be dependent on factors such as the existing
earnings, capital requirements, future business opportunities, financing agreements and market conditions for the
Corporation’s shares and the underlying commaodities markets.

NON GAAP MEASURES - TOTAL CASH COSTS

Total cash costs per ounce are calculated in accordance with the Gold Institute Production Cost Standard, (the “Standard™).
The total cash cost per ounce data are presented to provide additional information and are not prepared in accordance
with Canadian or U.5. GAAP. The data should not be considered in isolation or as a subsiituie for measures of performance
prepared in accordance with GAAP. The measures are not necessarily indicative of operating profit or costs of operations
as determined under Canadian or U.S. GAAP. The total cash cost per ounce calculation is derived from amounts included
in the Operating Expense line on the Staterment of Operations. As this line item is unchanged under US GAAP the total
cash cost per ounce figure is similarly unchanged using US GAAP results of operations.

Data used in the calculation of total cash costs per ounce may not conform to other similarly titled measures provided
by other precious metals companies. Management uses the cash cost per ounce data to access profitability and cash flow
from Crystallex's operations and to compare i with other precious metals producers. Yotal cash costs per ounce are
derived from amounts included in the Statement of Operations and include mine site operating <osts such as mining,
processing, administration, royalties and production taxes but exclude amartization, reclamation, capital expenditures
and exploration costs.

Total costs and total cash costs per ounce may be reconciled to the Operations Expense as follows:

$000 {encept per ounce data) 1007 2006 2005
Qperations Expense per Financial Statements $ 19,629 $ 26,244 $ 22,118
Add (less) : Revised Asset Retirement Obligations {1,009) 599 1,096
Less Exploration Expenditures {1,573} (621) -
Total Cash Operating Costs 17.046 26,222 23,214
Arnortization, Accretion and Depletion 1,220 1,473 1,946
Total Operating Costs $ 18,266 1) 27,695 3 25,160
Gold Qunces Sold 32,815 48,570 55,217
Total Cash Cost Per Qunce US$ $ 519 $ 540 5 420
Total Cost Per OQunce USY $ 557 b 570 H 456
Bolivars, Thousands (excepl per ounce data) 1007 2006 2005
Operating Costs 85,209,489 57,045,950 48,295,450
Less: Exploration Expenditures (6,832,734} {1,335,150) -
Total Cash Qperating Costs 78,376,755 55,710,800 48,295,450
Amortization, Accretion and Depletion 915,951 3,833,450 5,798,550
Total Operating Costs 79,292,706 59,544,250 94,094,000
Gold Ounces Sold 32,815 48,570 55,217
Tatal Cash Cost Per Ounce in Belivars, Thousands 2,388 1,147 87%
Tota!l Cost Per Qunce in Bolivars, Thousands 2,416 1,226 980
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RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board of Directars which, amang other things, is responsible for the consclidated financial statements of the
Company, delegates to management the responsibility for the preparation of the financial statements and internal
controls. The Board of Directors delegates to the Audit Committee the respaonsibility for ensuring that management fulfils
its responsibilities in respect of financial reporting and internal conirol. Each year the shareholders appoint independent
auditors to audit and report directly to them on the financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using appropriate generally accepted accounting principles and
estimates considered necessary by management to present fairly and consistently the consolidated financial position and
the results of operations.

The Company's Audit Committee is appointed by the Board of Directors annually and is currently comprised of three
independent directors. The Committee meets regularly with management and with the independent auditors to satisfy
itself that each group is properly discharging its responsibilities and to review the financial statements and the independent
auditors’ report. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, the independent auditors appointed by the shareholders to audit the
consolidated financial statements, have full and unrestricted access 1o the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee reports
its findings to the Board of Directors for consideration in approving the financial statements for issuance to the
shareholders.

As enunciated below, the Company has determined that internal control over financial reporting was not effective in
preventing possible material misstatements without {further substantive work. Accordingly, additional substantive
procedures were applied subseguently to provide assurance that such misstatements do not exist, and accordingly believes
that the consolidated financial statements are now free from material misstatements. In addition, the Company has
commenced a number of remediation steps to rectify such weaknesses in order to diminish the possibility of a material
misstatement in 2008. These are outlined below.

MANAGEMENT’'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate control over financial reporting for the Company.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may nct prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject 1o the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management has evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as at December
31, 2007 based on the criteria set forth in “Internal Conirol-Integrated Framework” issued by the Committee of
Sponsaring Organizations of the Treadway Commission ("COSQO”).

A material weakness is 3 deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company's annual financial statements will not be
prevented or detected.

As at December 31, 2007, the Company identified material weaknesses as follows:

(a) There are insufficient controls to monitor and prevent the override of established controls at the Company's
subsidiaries with respect to existing policies and procedures, communication of the delegation of authority and the
timeliness of financial analysis and reporting, primarily in remote locations.

(b) The Company did not consistently maintain implementation of effective controls over the purchasing function relating
to the documentation of the arrangemenis with certain suppliers at the parent entity level and the authorization and
approval of both supphiers and services at remote locations.
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(¢} The Company did not design and maintain effective controls over the identification and recognition of timing
differences in accounting for future income taxes. This resulted in an audit adjustment to the Company’s December
31, 2007 consolidated financial statements and the restatement of the Company’s December 31, 2006 and 2005
consolidated financial statements with respect t0 mineral properties, future income taxes and operations.

Each of these material weaknesses could result in a material misstatement to the Company's annual consalidated financial
statements that would not be prevented or detected. Material weaknesses (a) and (b) noted above could also result in
unautharized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated
financial statements.

As a result of the material weaknesses described above, Management has concluded that, as at December 31, 2007, the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting was not effective.

The effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as at December 31, 2007 has been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, our independent auditors, as stated in their report which appears herein.

MANAGEMENT'S PLANS TO REMEDIATE MATERIAL WEAKNESSES

Management, under the Board's direction, has undertaken significant additional work to ensure the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement that may not have been prevented or detected as a result of the material
weaknesses noted. Furthermore, Management has identified and commenced the implementation of additional internal
control procedures, particularly in remote locations, to ensure the acquisition, use or disposal of the Company’s assets are
appropriately authorized.

Management has taken the following steps to address the weaknesses identified:

{a) Monitoring and override of established controls: Management continues to work with the subsidiary managers,
particularly at remote locations, to ensure corporate policies and internal control procedures are respected by all and
information is provided on a timely basis. Training and coordination of activities amongst the senior managers of the
subsidiaries is ongoing.

(b} Controls cver the purchasing function: Management has begun a process of renewing and updating the physical
documentary support for existing service providers and suppliers and establishing a regimen of pre-qualifying
potential new service providers and suppliers. Management has implemented additional controls at the subsidiary
level to ensure appropriate approval and timely authorization of suppliers. We are continuing to reinforce compliance
with these contro's,

{c} Controls over accounting for income iax timing differences: Management continues to work with independent expert
advisors, in both Canada and Venezuela, to ensure the timely identification of those items giving rise to timing
differences for income tax purposes. Management has implemented controls to ensure the valuation basis, for both
accounting and tax reperting purposes, of the Companys assets, is identified, recorded and retained for financial
reporting purposes.

g
7\——— // ‘yi et

s

Johan van't Hof Gordon Thompsaon Hemdat Sawh
Chairman of the Audit Committee President & Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Sharehotders of Crystallex International Corporation

We have completed an integrated audit of the consolidated financial statements and internal control over financial
reporting of Crystallex International Corporation (the “Company”} as at December 31, 2007. Qur opinions, based on our
audit, are presented below.

Consolidated financial statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Crystallex International Corporation as at December
31, 2007, and the related consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive operations, cash flows and
shareholders’ equity for the year ended December 31, 2007. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of the Company's financial statements as at December 31, 2007 and for the year then ended in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards and the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financiat statements are free of material misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. A financial statement audit also
includes assessing the accounting principtes used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall
financia! statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all matenal respects, the financial
position of the Company as at December 31, 2007 and the resulis of its operations and its cash flows for the year ended
December 31, 2007 in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Internal control over financial reporting

We have also audited the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as at December 31, 2007, based on criteria
established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over
financia! reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the
accompanying Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control aver financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of internal control over financial reporting in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal contro! over financial reporting was maintained in all
material respects. An audit of internal control over financial reporting includes obtaining an understanding of internal
control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other proceduraes as we
consider necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internat controt over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (i} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable deiail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company,; (i} provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
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principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made anly in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements,

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financiat reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject 1o the risk that contrals may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control aver financial reporting, such that
there is a reasanable possibility that a material misstatement of the annual financial statements will not be prevented or
detected on a timely basis. As at December 31, 2007, the following material weaknesses have been identified and
described in Management's Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting: insufficient controls to monitor and
prevent the override of established controls at the Company's subsidiaries, tack of effective controls over the purchasing
function relating to the documentation of the arrangements with certain suppliers at the parent entity level and the
authorization and approval of both suppliers and services at remate 'ocations, and lack of the design and operation of
controls over the identification and recegnition of timing differences in accounting for income taxes.

We considered these material weaknesses in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit
of the December 31, 2007 consolidated financial statements, and our opinion regarding the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting does not affect our opinion on those consolidated financial statements,

in our opinion, the Company did not maintain, in all material respects, effective internat control over financial reporting
as at December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in internal Control - IMegrated Framework issued by the COSO.

%Wéw/am P
Chartered Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants

Toronto, Canada
March 31, 2008
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

To the Shareholders of Crystallex international Corporation

We have audited the consolidated halance sheet of Crystallex International Corporation as at December 31, 2006 and the
related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the years in the two-year
period ended December 31, 2006. These financial statements are the respensibility of the Company's management. Qur
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material
misstaternent. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement preseniation.

In aur opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Crystallex International Corporation as at Decemnber 31, 2006 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each
of the years in the two-year period ended December 3t, 2006 in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles.

As described in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements, the consolidated financial statements as at December
31, 2006 and for each of the years in the two-year period ended December 31, 2006 have been restated. We therefore
withdraw our previous audit report dated March 27, 2007, except as 1o then Mote 17, which is as at March 29, 2007, and
October 22, 2007 as to the effects of the previous restatement described in then Note 19.

The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial
reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are approgriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company’'s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly we express no such apinion.

Zotets & Tucho LLP

independent Registered Chartered Accountants

Licensed Public Accountants

Toronto, Ontario

March 27, 2007, except as to Note 18 which is as of October 22, 2007, and March 28, 2008 as to the effects of the
restatement described in Note 11,
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As at December 31, 2007 and 2006 (Expressed in United States dollars)

2007 2006
Restated
(Note 11}
ASSFTS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 16,065,203 § 28573142
Agcounts receivable 1,169,312 490,090
Inventories (Note 4) 2,142,374 4,867,577
Prepaid expenses and other 1,978,953 4,250,970
21,355,842 38,181,779
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Note 5) 317,179,327 283,407,214
DEFERRED FINANCING FEES (Note B) - 2,595,627
OTHER 705,327 510,029
TOTAL ASSETS $ 339,240,496 $ 324,694,654
LIABILITIES
CURRENT
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 10.858,2561 $ 12,791,456
Current partion of debt (Note 6) - 3,172,559
Current portion of asset retirement abligations (Note 7) 566,786 239,408
11,435,047 16,203,423
DEBT (Note 6) 83,291,377 84,524,929
ASSET RETIREMENT QBLIGATIONS (Note 7) 1,864,240 971,167
FUTURE INCOME TAXES (Note 10} 14,242,886 23,514,100
TOTAL LIABILITIES 110,833,550 125,213,620
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
SHARE CAPITAL {Note 8} 503,489,584 448,100,697
CONTRIBUTED SURPLUS 27,123,608 23,135,187
ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 11,958,981 11,958,981
DEFICIT (314,165,217) {283,713,831)
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS" EQUITY 228,406,345 199,481,034
$ 339,240,496 $ 324,694,654

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES {Note 14)

Gordon M. Thompson, Director

Johan van't Hof, Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE OPERATIONS

Years ended De<ember 31, 2007, 2006, 2005 {Expressed in United States dollars)

2007 2006 2005
Restated Restated
(Note 11) (Note 11}
MINING REVENUE % 13,565,167 $ 28,087,764 § 24,989,681
OPERATING EXPENSES
Operations 19,628,681 26,244,665 22,117,748
Amortization - 949,996 2,366,312
Accretion of asset retirement obligations 211,256 288,376 345,460
Depletion - 833,427 330,472
19,839,937 28,316,464 25,159,990
OPERATING LOSS (6.274,770) (228,700) (170,309)
OTHER EXPENSES
General and administrative 21,688,357 22,860,M7 23,126,395
Interest on debt 13,009,439 12,945,985 11,806,087
Amortization of property, plant and equipment 63,464 104,165 705,414
Amortization of deferred financing fees - 597,710 342,882
34,761,260 36,508,277 35,983,778
COMMODITY CONTRACT LOSS - - {3,770.835)
LOSS BEFQRE QTHER ITEMS (41,036,030) {36,737.477) {35,924,922)
OTHER ITEMS
Interest and other income 1,094,188 1,159,586 1,926,425
Foreign exchange gain 9,732,746 459,734 249,888
Gain on setttement of debt {Note 6) - - 875,610
Investment in subsidiaries {(Note 9) - - (6,600,000)
10,826,344 1,614,320 {3.548,077)
NET 1055 BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE {30,209,086) (35,118,157} (43,472,999}
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Note 10) {242,310} {566,072} {291,436)
NET LOS5S AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR (30,451,396) (35,684,229) (43,764,435}
DEFICIT, BEGINNING OF YEAR (283,713,831) [248,029,602) (204,265,167}

DEFICIT, END OF YEAR

$ (314,165,227)

§ (283,713,831)

$ (248,029,602}

NET LOSS PER SHARE

- Basic and diluted $ {0.12} $ {0.15) $ {0.22}
WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES OUTSTANDING
- Basic and diluted 256,668,551 230,229,162 194,729,931

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 {Expressed in United States dollars)

2007 2006 200%
Restated
{Note 11)
CASH FLOWS FROM (USED} IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss for the year $ (30,451,396) $ (35.684,229) $ (43,764,435)
Items not affecting cash:
Amertization and depletion 63,464 2,485,298 3,745,080
Interest accretion on debt 3,567,170 2,960,413 2,672,895
Stock-based compensation 3,111,561 2,463,691 3,665,894
Accretion of asset retirement chligations 211,256 288,376 345,460
Increases (reductions) in asset retirement obligations 1,009,195 (598,5319) {1,095,903)
Directors' fees paid in shares 148,000 60,000 190,000
Investment in subsidiaries - - 6,600,000
Gain on settlement of debt - - {875,610}
Unrealized gain gn transtation af future income taxes {Note 10) (14,322,229) - (1,442,481
Unrealized foreign exchange loss 2,274,657 - -
Unrealized commodity contract gain - - {8,265,111)
Warrants issued for professional fees - 1,365,839 -
Changes in other operating assets and liabilities:
Detrease (increase) in accounts receivable (579,772) 391,444 {351,627)
Decrease {increase} in inventories 2,725,203 (2,300,756) {782,033)
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses and other 609,840 {1,166,947) {2,231)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities (2.676,135) {940,265} 5,107,126
{34,309, 186) (30.675.675) (34,252,976)
CASH FLOWS FROM (USED} IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment in property, plant and equipment (26,892, 775) {49,787 854) (92,831,304
Decrease in restricted cash and cash equivalents - 21,323,163 76,682,473
Decrease in shon-term investments - - 30,277,280
(26,892.775) (28,464,691) 14,128,449
CASH FLOWS FROM {USED) tN FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issuance of common shares 52,792,543 82,951,454 15,892,242
Issuance of warrants - 5.972.069 272,926
Debt borrowings - - 7,673,793
Debt repayments (3,577,355) (5,202,552) (4,512,500
Deferred financing fees - (77.482) (898,657)
49,215,188 83,643,489 18,427,804
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {11,986,773} 24,503,123 {1,696,723)
EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE FLUCTUATIONS ON CASH (521,166) - -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 28,573,142 4,070,019 5,766,742
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 16,065,203 $ 28,573,142 5 4,070,019

Supplemental disclosures with respect 1o cash flows {Note 12)

The actompanying notes are an integrai part of the consclidated financial statemenis.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 {Expressed in United States dollars)

Equity A¢cumulated

Number of Component of Cumulative QOther Deficit Total

Common Number of  Contributed Exchangeable Translation Comprehensive (Restated) (Restated)

Shares Amount Warrants Surplus Bank Loan Adjusiment Income {Note 11} {Note 11)

Balance at December 31, 2004 189,836,735 3306,031,783 13,008,235 § 31,824,328 § - $11,958,981 § - $(204,265,167) $145,549,925

Retroactive adjustment (Note 3) - - - - - {11,958,981} 11,958,981 - -

Shares issued

Unit offering 200,000 466,549 450,000 272,926 - - - - 739.475

Exercise of options 775,000 1,196,957 - {143,934 - - - - 1,053,023
Issuance of shares under

equity draw down facility 12,273,236 17,394,493 - - - - - - 17,394,493

Acquisition of non—controlling interest 1,467,136 3,000,000 - - - - - - 3,000,000

Exercise of warrants 3,418,500 8,210,355 (3,418,500) (3,129,938} - - - - 5,080,357

Directors’ fees 65,186 190.000 - - - - - - 190,000

Share exchange - El Caltao 523 1,487 - - - - - - 1,487

Exchangeable debt - - - - 2,564,366 - - - 2,564,366

Stock-based compensation - - - 3,665,894 - - - - 3,665,8%4

Warrants expired - - $1,042,008) - - - - - -

Loss for the year {Restated) - - - - - - -

{43,764,435) (43,764,435)

Balance at December 31, 2005 (Restated) 208,026,316 3336,491,624 8,997,727 532,489,216 § 2,564,366 % - $11,958,981 4(248,029,602) $135,474 585
Shares issued;
Unit offerings 20,924,000 51,208,985 17,312,500 5,972,069 - - - - 57,181,054
Exercise of optians 1,641,800 5,490,735 - {1,828,981) - - - - 3,651,754
Issuance of shares under
equity draw down facility 1,661,130 4,317,661 - - - - - - 4,317,661
Settlement of promissory note 611,300 1,800,000 - - - - - - 1,800,000
setttament of bank loan 3,765,841 7,641,266 - - {2,564,366) - - - 5,076,900
Exercise of warrants 8,764,682 41,089,701 (8.764,682) (17,316,647) . - - - 23,273,054
Directors' fees 19,170 60,000 - - . - - - - 60,000
Share exchange - E! Caltao 255 725 - - - - - - 725
Stack-based compensation - - - 2,463,691 ' - - - - 2,463,691
Warrants issued for professional fees - - 500,000 1,365,839 - - - - 1,365,839
Warrants issued In exchange for early
exercise of warrants - - 875,000 - - - - - -
Warrants expired - - (233,045) - - - - - -
Loss far the year - - - - - - - (35,684,229} (35,684,229}
Balance at December 31, 2006 (Restated) 245,424,494 $448,100,697 ¥8,687,500 § 23,135187 9§ -3 - $11,958,981 $(283,713,831) $199,431,034
Shares issued:
Public offering 14,375,000 50,701,111 - - - - - - Sg 70111
Exercise of options 858.5%1 1,622,286 - (411,734) - - - - 1,210,552
Settlement of promissory note 460,900 1,800,000 - - - - - - 1,800,000
Exercise of warrants 501,500 1,112,190 {501,500} (236,310) - - - - 880,380
Directors’ fees 38,508 148,000 - - - - - - 148,000
Share exchange - £l Callao 79 300 - - - - - - 300
Stock-based compensation - - - 4,636,465 - - - - 4,636,465
Loss for the year - - - - - ~ - {30,451,396) {30,451,396)
Balance at December 31, 2007 261,659,072 $503,489,584 18,186,000 § 27,123,608 § -5 - $ 11,958,984 ${314,165,227)y"$228,406,946

“ Includes total comprehensive deficit for the twelve months ended December 31, 2007 of $302,206,246 (2006 - $271,754,850).

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 (Expressed in United 5tates dollars)

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND CONTINUATION OF BUSINESS

Crystallex International Corporation ("Crystallex” or the "Company”) is engaged in the production of gold and
related activities including exploration, development, mining and processing in Venezuela. As reflected in these
financial statements, the Company has not generated sustainable operating capital from its business activities and has
relied on debt, equity and other forms of financing to meet its obligations. On February 11, 2008, the Company
compfeted a public offering for gross proceeds of CDN$69,069,000 (Note 17). Management is of the opinion that
additiona! financing is available to continue its planned activities in the normal course upon completion of the
permitting process (refer below); however, while the Company has been successful in the past, there can be no
assurance it will be able to raise sufficient funds in the future,

The Company's principal asset is the Las Cristinas project, currently under development in Venezuela. Continued
development and the ultimate commencement of commercial production are dependent upon receipt of the
Authorization to Affect Natural Resources {the “Permit”} which will allow management to proceed to put in place
financing to fund construction. These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which
assumes that the Company will be successful in obtaining the Permit and will be able to obtain the necessary
financing to complete the Las Cristinas project through project debt, other forms of public market debt, or equity
financing; thereby fulfilling its commitment under its Mine Operating Agreement. The Company continues to believe
that it will be successful in obtaining the Permit and any other government approvals that are necessary to complete
the mine development and commence commercial production. The Company received official notice in March 2006
from the Venezuelan Ministry of Basic Industries and Mining ("MIBAM*) advising that MIBAM has formally approved
the technical, economic and financial Feasibility Study for the Las Cristinas project. The Company further received
notice in June 2007 from the Corporacién Venezolana de Guayana (“"CVG”), that the requirements of the Ministry of
the Environment and Natural Resources of Venezuela ("MinAmb" formerly referred to as “MARN") for the issuance
of the environmental permit to commence construction of the Las Cristinas Project have been fulfilled upon the
posting of a Comgliance Guarantee Bond and payment of certain taxes.

The carrying value of the Las Cristinas assets could be subject to material write-down in the event that the Permit or
any other permits are not received or that financing efforts are not successful, and, in addition, other adjustments to
amounts and classification of assets and liabilities may be necessary to these consolfidated financial statements should
such circumstances impair the Company's ability, in the future, to continue as a going concern as contemplated under
accounting principles generally accepted in Canada.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOCUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies followed by the Company, which have been consistently applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements, except for certain new pronouncements which have been adopted
effective January 1, 2007 as described in Note 3, are summarized as follows.

These policies are consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States in ail material respects
except as outlined in Note 18.

Basis of presentation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements of Crystallex are prepared by management in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Canada.

Principles of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its majority-owned subsidiaries, all
of which are controlled thraugh the ownership of a majority voting interest. All inter-company balances and
transactions have been eliminated.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Translation of foreign currency subsidiaries and foreign currency balances

The accounts of subsidiaries, all of which are considered to be integrated foreign operations, are translated from the
local currency into U.S. dollars using the temporal method. Under this method, monetary assets and liabilities are
translated into U.S. dolfars at the year end exchange rates, and non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated into
U.S. dollars using histarical rates of exchange. Revenues and expenses, except for expenses related to non-monetary
assets which are not historical, are translated into U.S. dollars at average rates for the year. Exchange gains and losses
on transtation are included in the Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Qperations.

The Company translates monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies at the rate of
exchange in effect at the balance sheet date and non-monetary assets and liabilities at historical exchange rates.
Revenues and expenses are translated at average rates in the month except for depreciation and amortization, which
are translated using the same rates as the related assets. Foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary items are
recorded on the statement of operations as they occur.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include highiy liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Short-term investments

Short-term investments include highly liquid investments with griginal maturities greater than three months and less
than one year.

Praperty, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization of plant and
equipment used directly in the mining and production of gold is included in operating costs. Amartization is being
pravided for using the straight-line method over the following periods, not to exceed the mine's estimated ife:

Buildings S years
Field vehicles 5 years
Furniture and equipment 5 years
Mill and plant 20 years
Mining equipment 1Q years

Mineral properties and deferred exploration and development expenditures

Mineral exploration costs such as topographical, geochemical and geophysical studies are capitalized and carried at
cost until the properties 1o which they relate are placed into production, sold or where management has determined
there to be a permanent impairment in value. Development costs incurred to access ore bodies identified in the
current mining plan are expensed as incurred after production has commenced. Development costs necessary 1o
extend a mine beyond those areas identified in the current mining plan and which are incurred to access additional
reserves are deferred until the incremental reserves are mined. Mineral properties and development costs, including
the mineral acquisition and direct mineral exploration costs relating to the current mining plan, are depleted and
amortized using the unit-of-production method over the estimated life of the ore body based on proven and
probable reserves.
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Asset retirement obligations

The Company records a fiability for its long-term asset retirement obligations, equal to the fair value of the obligation
for asset retirement, and records a corresponding increase to the carrying amaunt of the related asset which is
amortized and charged to amortization expense over the life of the associated asset. The liability is increased over the
period of expected cash flows with a corresponding charge to operating expenses. The fair value of the obligation for
asset retirement is re-assessed annually.

impairment of long lived assets

The Company reviews and evaluates the recoverability of the carrying amounts of all its producing properties and
related plant and equipment annually or when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. Estimated future net cash flows, on an undiscounted bas’s, are calculated using estimated
recoverable ounces of ‘gold {considering current proven and probable mineral reserves and the value beyond proven
and probable which includes those mineral resources expected to be converted into mineral reserves), estimated
future commeodity price realization (considering historical and current prices, price trends and related factors) and
operating costs, future capital expenditures, project financing costs and reclamation costs.

The amount of the impairment loss is determined as the excess of the carrying vatue of the asset over its fair value,
which is measured using discounted cash flows.

Non-producing mineral properties are evaluated for impairment based on management’s intentions and are written
down when the long-term expectation is that the net carrying amount wilt not be recovered.

Production inventories

Gold in doré, gold in process and stockpiled ore are stated at the tower of average production cost which includes all
direct anc indirect costs, including amortization of equipment and facilities, and net realizable value.

Consumables and spare parts inventory are valued at ihe lower of average and replacement cost.
Income taxes

The Company uses the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes whereby future income taxes are
recognized for the tax consequences of timing differences by applying substantively enacted statutory income tax
rates applicable to future years to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and the tax basis of
certain assels and liabilities, The Company provides a valuation allowance against the recorded future income tax
asset when it is more likely than not that some or all of the future income tax assets will not be realized.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from mining operations are recognized upon shipment of gold, when title has passed to the customer, when
persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, and collection of the sale is reasonably assured.

Deferred financing fees and debt

Until December 31, 2006, transaction costs related o the Company’s debt financings were deferred and amortized
over the term of the related financing. As a result of new accounting standards effective January 1, 2007, the
Company has elected to record debt net of transaction costs. Debt is subsequently stated at amortized cost; any
difference between the proceeds {net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the income
statement over the period of the debt using the effective interest method.

Loss per share

Loss per share is calculated by dividing net loss by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding
during the year plus outstanding warrants that are unconditionally convertible into common shares. Biluted per share
amounts are calculated using the treasury stock method. In 2067, 2006 and 2005, the potential effect of the
outstanding convertible notes, stack options and warrants were anti-dilutive.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)
Stock-based compensation plan

The Company has a stock-based compensation plan which is described in Note 8. The Company accounts for
stock options using the fair value method, whereby compensation expense for stock options is measured at the
fair value at the grant date using the Black-Scholes valuation model and is recognized over ihe vesting period of
the options granted.

Fair value of financial instruments

The balance sheet carrying amounts for cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payable and
accrued liabilities approximate fair value due to their short-term nature. The fair value of dabt is disciosed in Note 6.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Canada
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements. Significant estimates
used include those relating to the timing and receipt of the Permit, gold prices, recoverable proven and probable
reserves, available resources, available operating capital, fair value of stock options and warrants, income taxes and
required asset retirement obligations. These estimates each affect management’s evaluation of asset impairment and
the recorded balances of inventories, site closure and asset retirement obligations.,

While management believes these estimates and assumptions are reasonable, actual results could vary significantly.
Comparative figures

The comparative figures have been reclassified, where necessary, to conform to the presentation adopted for 2007.

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND FUTURE ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In 2005, the CICA issued three new accounting standards: Handbook Section 1530, Comprehensive Income {Section
1530}, Handbook Section 3855, Financial Instruments — Recognition and Measurement (Section 3855), and Handboaok
Section 3865, Hedges (Section 3865). These new standards became effective for the Company an January 1, 2007.

Section 1530 - Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income is composed of net income and other comprehensive income ("OCI"). OCl is the change in
shareholders’ equity, which results from transactions and evenis from sources other than the Company’s activities,
These transactions and events include changes in the currency translation adjustment relating to self-sustaining
foreign operations and unrealized gains and losses resulting from changes in fair value of certain financial instruments.
The Company has included a Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Operations for changes in
these items for the year ended December 31, 2007, while the cumulative changes in OC! are included in accumulated
other comprehensive income (“AQCI"), which is presented as a new category of shareholders’ equity in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet. The cumulative translation adjustment has been retroactively reclassified to AQCI.

Section 3855 - Financial Instruments - Recognition and Measurement

Under the new standards, financial assets, financial liabilities and derivatives are initially recognized at fair value and
their subsequent measurement depends on their classification as described below. All financial assets or liabilities,
with the exception of those securities designated as “held-to-maturity” {"HTM"), financial assets designated as
“available-for-sale” (*AFS"), financial assets that are loans and receivables and other financial liabilities, are measured
at fair value on each balance sheet date, with changes in fair value recorded in the Consolidated Statement of
Operations and Comprehensive Operations. Financial instruments classified as HTM, loans and receivables or other
financiat liabilities are recorded at amortized cost. Financial instruments classified as AFS are measured at fair value,
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with changes in fair value recorded in OCI, with the exception of AFS equity securities that do not have quoted market
prices in an active market which are measured at cost.

Derivative instruments are carried at fair value, inctuding those derivative instruments that are embedded in financial
or non-financial contracts which are not closely related to the host contracts. Changes in the fair values of derivative
instruments are recognized in income of the current period, with the exception of derivative instruments designated
in effective cash flow hedges or hedges of foreign currency exposure in a self-sustaining foreign operation.

Section 3865 - Hedges

Section 3865 specifies the criteria that must be satisfied in order for hedge accounting to be applied and the
accounting for each of the permitted hedging strategies: fair value hedges and cash flow hedges. These criteria have
noi changed substantially. Any hedge ineffectiveness is measured and recorded in income of the current period.
Hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively when the derivative no longer qualifies as an effective hedge, or the
derivative is terminated or sold, or upon the sale or early termination of the hedged item.

The Company did not have any cutstanding hedging contracts as at December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006.
There was no material impact to the Company’s financial statements on adoption Sections 1530, 3855 and 3865.
Sections 1535, 3862 and 3863

In 2007, the CICA issued Handbook Section 3862, Financial instruments — Disclosures, and Handbook Section 3863,
Financial Instruments - Presentation, and Handbook Section 1535, Capital Disclosures. Handbook Sections 3862 and
3863 together supersede Handbook Section 3861, Financial Instruments - Disclosure and Presentation and provide
disclosure and presentation requirements for financial instruments, Handbook Section 1535, Capital Disclosures
specifies the disclosure of (i} an entity's objectives, policies and processes for managing capital; (i} quantitative data
about what the entity regards as capital; {iii) whether the entity has complied with any capital requirements; and (iv)
if it has not complied, the consequences of such non compliance. These new standards apply to interim and annual
financial statements relating to fiscal years beginning on or after October 1, 2007 with early adoption permitted. The
Company has elected to apply these standards for the year-ended December 31, 2007.

Future accounting pronouncements

The CICA issued new accounting standards which are effective for interim and annual consolidated financial
statements for the Company's reporting period beginning on January 1, 2008 and 2009.

Handbook Section 1400, “General Standards of Financial Statement Presentation”. This section was amended so as
to include the criteria for determining and presenting the Companys ability to continue as a going concern.

Handbook Section 3031, “Inventories”. This section establishes standards for the measurement of inventories,
allocations of overhead accounting for write-down and disclosures.

Handbook Section 3251, "Equity”. This section establishes standards for the presentation of equity and changes in
equity during the reporting period. The requirements in this section are in addition to Section 1535.

The Company is currently assessing the impact of this new accounting standard on its consolidated financial
statements,

The CICA has issued a new standard which may affect the financial disclosures and results of operations of the
Company for interim and annual periods beginning January 1, 2009. Section 3064, Goodwill and intangible assets,
establishes revised standards for recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of goodwill and intangible
assets. Concurrent with the introduction of this standard, the CICA withdrew EIC 27, Revenues and Expenses during
the pre-operating period. As a result of the withdrawal of EIC 27, the Company will no longer be able to defer costs
and revenues incurred prior to commercial production at new mine operations.

The Company has not yet assessed the impact of Sections 1400, 3031, 3064 and 3251 on its consolidated financiat
statements.
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4 INVENTORIES

2007 2006
Gold in doré $ 397,543 $ 524,360
Gold in process 296,538 563,746
Stockpiled ore 33,229 958,271
Consumables and spare parts 1,415,068 2,821,200
$ 2.142,374 $ 4,867,577
5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
The components of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

907

Accumulated
Amortization Nat Book
Cost and Pepletion Value
Plant and equipment $ 121,890,469 $ 9,066,587 $ 112,823,882
Mineral properties 212,262,022 7.906,577 204,355,445
$ 334152491 $ 16,973,164 $ 117,179,327

2006 Restated (Nate 11)

Actumulated
Amgrtization Net Bagk
Cost and Depletian Value
Plant and equipment $ 113,865,685 $ 9,003,122 $ 104,862,563
Mineral properties 186,451,233 7,906,577 178,544,656
$ 300,316,918 $ 16,909,699 § 283,407,219

The net bhook values of property, plant and equipment by location are as follows:

2007

Plant and Minaral
Equipmant Proparties Total
Las Cristinas $ 112,723.8%0 $ 204355445 $ 317,079,335
Corporate 99,552 - 99,992
$ 112,823,882 $ 204,355,445 $ 312,179,327

2006 Restated (Note 11}

Plant and Mineral
Equipment Properties Total
Las Cristinas ¥ 104,691,650 § 178,544,656 $ 283,236,306
Corporate 170,913 - 170,913
$ 104,862,563 $ 178,544,656 $ 283,401,219

Plant and equipment for Las Cristinas are not subject to amortization as they have not been placed in use.

Property, plant and equipment is summarized as follows:

Las Cristinas

On September 17, 2002, the Company entered into 3 non-assignable mining agreement {the “Agreement”) with the
Corporacidn Venezolana de Guayana ("CVG"), acting under the authority of the Mimistry of Energy and Mines of
Venezuela ("MEM"), pursuant to Venezuelan mining law, under which the Company was granted the exclusive right
to explore, develop and exploit the Las Cristinas 4, 5, 6 and 7 properties including the processing of gold for its
subseguent commercialization and sale. As a result of entering into the Agreement, the Company has discontinued
previous legal proceedings to confirm its title rights to the Las Cristinas 4 and 6 concessions.
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The aggregate cost incurred by the Company to December 31, 2007 to obtain the right to exploit the area is
$317,079,335, represented by $266.627,080 of payments in cash, $32,003,206 related to future income taxes,
$16,924,146 made through the issuance of common shares of the Company, and $1,524,903 made through siock
options issues by the Company. Costs are comprised of property payment and finders’ fees of $36,170,393
(324,978,317 in cash and $11,192,076 through shares); professional fees and related expenses of $136,151,846
($130,419,776 in cash and $5,732,070 through shares); and equipment purchases of $112,753,890 (in cash). Share
issuances are valued ai the prior 5 day weighted average irading price for the comman shares an the American Stock
Exchange. The preceding amounts include payments relating to travel and administrative costs of $3,515,806. during
the year ended December 31, 2007 (2006 - $793,557; 2005 - $370,579).

6. DEBT
2007 2006
Notes payable $ 83,291,377 $ 82,734,477
Bank loan - 3,363,0M
Exchangeable promissory note - 1,800,000
83,291,377 B7.697 488
Less: Current portion of debt - 3,172,559
$ 83,291,377 $ 84,524,929

Deferred Financing Fees

Effective January 1, 2007 deferred financing fees of $2,595,627 were reclassified to debt as a result of new accounting
standards. Accordingly, the Notes payable balance as at December 31, 2007 is reflected net of financing fees.

Notes Payable

tn conjunction with a Unit offering on December 23, 2004 the Company issued $100,000,000 principal amount senior
unsecured notes (the “"Notes”) with a coupan rate of 9.375%, due on December 23, 2011 for net proceeds of
$75,015,250, after expenses and equity allocation. Interest is payable semi-annually on January 15 and July 15 of each
year, beginning July 15, 2005. The Company may redeem the Notes, in whole or in part, at any time after December
31, 2008 at a redemption price of beiween 100% and 102% of the principal amounts of the Notes, depending on
the redemption date, plus accrued and unpaid interest and additional interest, if any, to the date of the redemption. In
addition, the Company may be required to redeem the Notes for cash under certain circumstances, such as a change
in cantrol in the Company or where the Company ceases to heneficially own, directly or indirectly, at least a majority
interest in the Las Cristinas Project; or the Company may redeem the Notes, in whole but not in part, for cash at its
option under certain circumstarnces, such as a change in the applicable Canadian withholding tax legislation.

The carrying value of the Notes was derived from a financial offering that contained both a liability and equity
component, As a result, the equity component was allocated based on the fair value of the shares issued with the
Unit offering, calculated at $21,450,000 with $78,550,000 being the discounted fair value of the Notes, The
discounted fair value of the Notes is accreted to the face value of the Notes using the effective interest rate method
over its seven year term, with the resulting charge recorded 10 interest expense.

Bank Loan
In May 2007, the loan balance was repaid.

On December 23, 2005 the Company and its subsidiaries restructured their outstanding obligations to Standard Bank
Pic (“SB”) to close out all outstanding gold forward sales and call option transactions and to amend its existing credit
agreement.
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6. DEBT (CONTINUED)

Pursuant to the restructuring, (1) the gold forward sales and call options transactions were closed out and the resulting
liability of approximately $14,315,000 was converted into a fully drawn term loan facility, and amaortized over two years
until maturity on December 31, 2008 and (2) the payment obligation under the existing credit agreement due in
fanuary 2006 was restruciured and coordinated with the payment terms of the new term loan facility.

The principal amounts outstanding under the new term loan facility and the restructured credit agreement bore
interest at a rate per annum equal to LBOR plus 2.5%. The Company was required to make a single aggregate
payment of $150,000 per month on account of interest and principal under the term loan facility and the restructured
credit agreement. The Company was also required 1o make additional principal repayments under the new term loan
tacility and the restructured credit agreement in certain circumstances, including the issuance of equity or convertible
or exchangeable debt securities other than issuances pursuant to existing credit arrangements. Accordingly, upon
completion of the private placement unit offerings in February 2006 and August 2006 (Note B), the Company repaid
$2,123,800 and $1,889,324, respectively, of principa! due to SB.

Of the principal amount outstanding under the new term loan facility, $7,500,000 was exchangeable at the option
of SB for Crystallex common shares at a price per common share equal to the lesser of the average market price of
Crystailex common shares on the Toronto Stock Exchange ("TSX") for the five trading days preceding December 23,
2005 and the average market price of Crystallex common shares on the TSX for the five trading days preceding the
exchange date.

Of the $7,500,000 exchangeable portion of the debt, $4,935,634 and $2.564,366 respectively, was allocated
between the liability and equity components of the debt. The liability component represented the present value of
the exchangeable portion discounted using the interest rate that would have been appficable 1o the non-
exchangeable debt. The equity component represented the present value of the interest payrments which the
Company could settle through the issuance of shares or by cash, discounted at the same rate as the liability
compenent (the interest component) and the right of SB to convert the principal of the debt into comman shares,
determined as the residuat amount at the date of the new term loan facility.

As a result of restructuring the 32,054,000 principal payment due in January 2006 under the previous credit
agreement with 5B, the Company recorded a gain of $875,610 in December 2005.

in May 2006, SB elected to convert into commaon shares $7,500,000 principal amount of the loan in accordance with
the terms of the credit agreement. As a result of the conversion, Crystallex issued 3,765,841 common shares to SB
as settlement of the $7,500,000 face value amaunt of the loan as well as including the accrued interest, accretion
and deferred financing fees all of which resulted in a value of $7,641,266 being assigned to the shares issued.

Exchangeable Promissory Note
In July 2007, the promissory note was settled in full,

On December 31, 2005, the Company, through ECM {(Venco) Ltd, ("ECM"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary,
issued to Corporacion Vengroup, S.A. (“Vengroup”) a $3,600,000 exchangeable promissory note of ECM.

Under the terms of the exchangeable promissory note, either party may elect to have the instalment payment satisfied
by the delivery of Crystallex common shares. The number of shares 10 be delivered 10 Vengroup is based on the
weighted average trading price of the Crystallex common shares on the TSX during the five trading days immediately
preceding delivery of an exchange notice.

In March 2006 Vengroup exercised its right to exchange the June 29, 2006 principal instalment payment of $900,000
for common shares of Crystallex. The Company issued 307,213 common shares as settlement of this principat
instalment payment.
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In July 2006 Vengroup exercised its right to exchange the December 29, 2006 principal instalment payment of
$900,000 for common shares of Crystallex. The Company issued 304,087 common shares as settlement of this
principal instalment payment.

In January 2007 Vengroup exercised its right to exchange the June 29, 2007 principal instalment payment of
$900,000 for common shares of Crystallex. The Company issued 245,710 commaon shares as settlement of this
principal instalment payment.

In July 2007, Vengroup exercised its right to exchange the December 29, 2007 final principal instalment payment of
$900,000 for common shares of Crystallex. The Company issued 215,190 common shares as settlement of this final
principal instalment payment. This cbligation was settled in full after the July 2007 exercise.

Interest Accretion

Interest accretion on the Notes and bank loan of $3,567,170 was expensed during the year ended December 31,
2007 (December 31, 2006 - $ 2,960,413} as a compenent of interest expense.

Fair Value of Debt

The estimated fair value of debt, which is not recognized in these consolidated financial statements, is $82,000,000
{2006: $84,878,219) and is determined by discounting the contractual cash flows using market interest rates for debt
with similar terms and risks.

7. ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

The key assumptions on which the fair value of the asset retirement obligations are based include the estimated future
cash flows, the timing of those cash flows, and the credit-adjusted risk-free rate or rates at which the estimated cash
flows have been discounted. The Company used a discount rate of 15%. As at December 31, 2007, undiscounted
cash outflows approximating $3,400,000 are expected to occur over a five year period,

tn view of the uncertainties concerning future asset retirement and progressive reclamation costs, the ultimate costs
to the Company could differ materially from the amounts estimated. The estimate for the future liability is subject to
change based on possible amendments to applicable laws and legislation, the nature of ongoing operations and
technological innovations. Future changes, if any, due to their nature and unpredictability, could have a significant
impact and would be reflected prospectively, as a change in an accounting estimate.

The following tabie explains the change in the asset retirement obligations:

2007 2006

Asset retirement obligations, beginning of year $ 1,210,575 $ 1,520,738
Accretion expense 211,256 288,376
Revisions in estimated cash flows 1,009,195 {598,539)
2,431,026 1,210,575

Less: current portion 566,786 239,408
Asset retirement obligations, end of year H 1,864,240 5 471,167
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8. SHARE CAPITAL

2007 2006

Authorized
Unlimited commoen shares, without par value
Unlimited Class “A* preterence shares, no par value
Undimited Class “8" preference shares, no par value
Issued
261,659,072 Commen Shares (2006 - 245,424,494) $ 503,489,584 $ 448,100,697

Warrants

As at December 31, 2007 common share purchase warrants were ouistanding enabling the holders to acquire

common shares as follows:
Weighted Average

Number of Remaining Contractual
Exercise Price Warrants Life (Years)
$4.30 ($4.25 CDN) 5,061,0007 0.12
$4.00 875,000 0.54
$4.25 12,250,002 -
18,186,000

' These warrants expired at maturity on February 11, 2008.

? These warrants become exercisable for an eighteen month period commencing on the date which is 45 days fotlowing the receipt
of the Permit for the Company's Las Cristinas project.

A summary of common share purchase warrants outstanding as at December 31 and changes during each of the
years then ended is as follows:

2007 2006

Weighted Weighted
Number of Avarage Number of Average
Warrants Exercise Price Warrants Evercise Price
Balance - beginning of year 18,687,500 4.01 8,997,727 2
Granted - - 18,687,500 4,01
Exercised (501,500} 1.76 (8,764,682} 2n
Expired or forfeited - - {233,045} 2.75
Balance - end of year 18,186,000 4.25 18,687,500 a4

Stock options

The Company has an Incentive Share Option Plan (the “Plan") that provides for the granting of options to executive
officers, directors, employees and service providers of the Company 10 a maximum of 10% of the issued and
outstanding common shares of the Company on a non-dilutive basis. Under the Plan, the exercise price of each option
cannot be less than the closing price of the Company’s common shares on the Toronto Stock Exchange, on the trading
day immediately preceding the date of the grant. Stock options granted to service providers and employees, executive
officers, and directors have a life of two, five and ten years, respectively. Stock options may vest immediately, or over
periods ranging from one year to three years. In June 2007 the shareholders of the Company approved amendments
to the Plan whereby the Board of Directors may permit an optionee to elect to receive without payment by the
optionee of any additional consideration, common shares equal to the value of options surrendered.

The Company determines the fair value of the employee stock options using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.
The estimated fair value of the options is expensed over their respective vesting periods. The fair vaiue of stock options
was determined using the following weighted average assumgtions:

A8 CRYSTALLEX ANNGIAL REPOART 2007



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 (Expressed in United States dollars}

2007 2006 2005
Risk free interest rate 4.10% 4.13% 161%
Expected life (years) 30 3.70 3.97
Expected volatility over expected life 1% 119% 105%

Expected dividends - - -

The fair value compensation recorded for 1he year ended December 31, 2007 was $4,636,465 (2006 — $2,463,691;
2005 - $3,665,894) of which $3,111,561 {2006 - $2,463,691; 2005 - $3,665,894) was expensed and $1,524,904

(2006 - nil; 2005 - nil} was capitalized to mineral properties.
2007 2006 2005

Weighted average fair value of options granted
during the year-CDNS$ 5 249 L] 2.63 $ 2.75

As at December 31, 2007 stock options were ouistanding enabling the holders to acquire common shares as {ollows:

Qutstanding Optians Exercisable Options

Weighted Average Weighted Weighted

Remaining Avarage Average

Range of Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise
Exercite Price-Cdn§ of Options Life (Years) Price-CONS Exercisable Price-CDN$
$1.00 to $1.50 797,500 0.64 ] 1.46 797,509 3 1.46
$1.75 10 $2.60 4,139,935 3.48 122 4,010,435 2.23
$2.65 10 43,60 4,260,754 4.83 312 3,800,754 3.09
$4.00 to §4.65 3,329,233 5.12 4.33 2,632,733 4.26
12,527,422 4.20 $ 3.04 11,241,422 H 2.94

A summary of the status of the Plan as at December 31 and changes during each year then ended is as follows:

2007 2006 200%

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Numbaer Exercise Number Exercise Number Exercise

0f Options Price-CDONS of Qptions Price-CONY$ of QOptions Price-CDN$

Balance - beginning of year 11,394,085 $ 2.80 11,327,394 $ 2.63 10,950,250 $ 2.46
Granted 2,067,004 3.66 1,773,400 3.73 1,407,644 3.28
Exercised {864,000)* 1.62 (1,641,800} (2.31) {775,000) (1.66)
Expired or forfeited {69,667) ER:3) (64,909) {2.51) (255,500} {2.02}
Balance - end of year 12,527,422 $ .04 11,394,085 1] 2,80 11,327,394 $ 2.63

*Includes 6,500 options which were exercised for 1,091 common shares of the Company on a cashless basis
Financing Transactions
Fiscal 2007 Activities

On Aprit 24, 2007, the Company issued 14,375,000 common shares at CON$4.25 per common share, in @ bought
deal with a syndicate of underwriters, for proceeds of CON$57,103,000 {(350,701,111) after underwriting fees and
expenses,

In January and July, 2007, under the terms of the exchangeable promissory note between Vengroup and ECM {Note
6). the Company issved a total of 460,900 common shares to Vengroup as settfement of $1,800,000 due to
Vengroup.
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8. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)
Fiscal 2006 Activities

In January 2006, the Company issued 1,661,130 common shares for net proceeds of $4,317,661 under the terms of
its equity draw down facitity.

In February 2006, the Company completed a private placement of 10,799,000 units. Each unit was comprised of one
commen share and 1.1344 common share purchase warrants. Each whole warrant entitles the holder to purchase
one common share at a price of US$4.25. The warrants are non-transferable and are exercisable for an 18 month
period commencing 45 days following receipt of the Permit for the Company's Las Cristinas project in Venezuela.
Centain events, including change in control of the Company or in the Company’s interest in the Las Cristinas project,
make the warrants immediately exercisable. The net praceeds received by the Company, after considering issuance
costs of $991,972, was $30,325,132. The issuance costs were allocated proportionately to the amounts recarded as
share capital of $28,233,744 and contributed surplus of $2,091,388.

In March and July 2006, under the terms of the exchangeable promissory notes between Vengroup and ECM
{Note 6}, the Company issued a total of 611,300 common shares to Vengroup as settlement of $1,800,000.

In May 2006, upon SB's exercise of its exchange rights, the Company issued 3,765,841 common shares to SB as
settlement of the $7.5 million exchangeable portion of the bank loan {Note 6).

In July 2006, the Company agreed to amend the terms of 2,197,727 unlisted common share purchase warrants (the
“Warrants"). Each Warrant entitled the holder 1o acquire one common share of the Company at an exercise price of
US$2.75 per share until September 15, 2006. Pursuant to the terms of the amendment to the Warrants and their
subseguent exercise, the Company issued approximately 0.398 new common share purchase warrants (the “New
Warrants”) in exchange for each Warrant exercised, for an aggregate of 875,000 New Warrants. Each New Warrant
issued entitles the holder to acquire one common share in the capital of the Company at an exercise price of US$4.00
per share until July 14, 2008.

The Company agreed to amend the terms of warrants granted to its project finance advisor (“Advisor”). The
Company previously issued 500,000 common share purchase warrants to its Advisor in April 2003 that would only
become exercisable to the Advisor should the Advisor secure financing for the Las Cristinas project (“the Financing
Condition”). In July 2006 the Company agreed to remove the Financing Condition from these warrants and,
accordingly, recorded prefessional fees of $1,365,839.

In August 2006, the Company completed a pubtic offering of 10,125,000 units. Each unit was comprised of one
common share and one half of one common share purchase warrant. Each whole warrant entitles the holder to
purchase one common share at a price of CON3$4.25. The warrants are exercisable on or before February 10, 2008.
The net proceeds received by the Company, after considering issuance costs of CDN$2,309,331 {$2,061.078), was
CDN$30,090,669 ($26,855,922). The issuance costs were allocated proportionately to the amounts recorded as share
capital of CDON$25,742,567 (322,975,241) and contributed surplus of CDN$4,348,102 ($3,880,681).

Fiscal 2005 Activities

On luly 29, 2005, the Company filed a preliminary short form base shelf prospectus with the Ontario Securities
Commission and a corresponding registration statement with the United States $ecurities and Exchange Commission
pursuant to the multijurisdictional disclosure system. On August 23, 2005 the preliminary short form base shelf
prospectus and registration statement became effective. This prospectus enables the Company 1o offer at its option,
over a 25-month period, up to an aggregate of CON$75 million of senior unsecured notes, common shares, warrants
and units in one or more offerings.
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On September 14, 2005 the Company established, as covered under the short form base shelf prospectus, a CON$60
million equity draw down facility with a counterparty and also issued and sold to them for gross proceeds of CDN$10
million {received on closing}, units comprising CON$ 10,000,000 principal amount of 5% Series 2 Notes due March
13, 2006, 200,000 common shares, and warrants to acquire 450,000 common shares exercisable on or before
September 13, 2006 at a price of CDN$3.19 per share. The securities comprising the units separated immediately
upon issue (Note 6). During the period October 5, 2005 through to December 16, 2005 the Company issued
12,273,236 commaon shares for net proceeds of $17.8 million under its equity draw down facility. In accordance with
the terms of the draw down {acility a portion of the proceeds were used to repay the outstanding Series 2 Notes.

On December 30, 2005, the Company acquired the non-controlling shareholder interests in the holding companies
which own or control the interests in certain of Lo Incréible mining properties located in Bolivar State, Venezuela
{including the La Victoria deposit), Under the terms of the transaction ECM purchased the 49% outstanding interest
in Osmin Holdings Limited {"Osmin"} and the 30% outstanding interest in Tamanaco Holdings Limited (" Tamanaco”}
owned by Vengroup and a related company, for consideration consisting of $6,600,000 payable as follows:

~  $3,000,000 by the issuance and delivery 1o Vengroup of 1,467,136 Crystallex common shares;

- 33,600,000 by the issuance and delivery 10 Vengroup of a $3,600,000 exchangeable promissory note of ECM
(Nose 6).

In addition, the arbitration proceedings between Crystallex and Vengroup were terminated and the parties delivered
mutual releases with respect to the subject matter of the arbitration proceedings. As a result of the transaction, the
joint venture arrangements between ECM and Vengroup have been terminated and the Company, through its
subsidiaries, now owns 100% of Osmin and Tamanaco. ECM's abligations under the exchangeable promissory note
are guaranteed by a subsidiary of ECM and secured by a pledge of the shares of ECM's Venezuelan subsidiary that
directly holds the interest in the Lo Increible properties.

As part of the transaction, Crystallex also entered into a consulting agreement with the principals of Vengroup pursuant
to which Crystallex has agreed to pay aggregate consulting fees of $600,000. These amounts were expensed during
2005 and included in general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of operations,

Shareholder Rights Plan

On Qctober 30, 2006 the shareholders of the Company voted to ratify, confirm and approve a new sharehclder Rights
Plan (the “Rights plan”) which was originally approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on June 22, 2006.
The rights issued under the Rights plan are subject to reconfirmation at every third annual meeting of sharehalders
and will expire at the close of the Company’s annual meating in 2016 (the "Expiration Time"), |

Pursuant to the Rights plan, the Board of Directors declared a distribution of one right (a “Right”) for each
outstanding Comman Share of the Company to shareholders of record at the close of business on the Record Date
and authorized the issuance of ane Right for each Common Share issued after the Record Date and prior to the
Separation Time (described below) and the Expiration Time. The Rights will separate from the Common Shares at the
time (the “Separation Time ") which is the close of business on the eighth trading day (or such tater day as determined
by the Board of Directors) after the public announcement of the acquisition of, or intention to acquire, beneficial
ownership of 20% of the Common Shares of the Company by any person other than in accordance with the terms
of the Rights plan.

I order to constitute a “Permitted Bid”, an offer must be made in compliance with the Rights plan and must be
made to all shareholders {other than the offeror), must be open for at least 60 days and be accepted by
shareholders holding more than 50% of the outstanding vating shares and, if so accepted, must be extended for
a further 10 business day period.
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10.

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

In November 2004, Vengroup delivered a notice of arbitration to the Company and ECM. On December 29, 2005 the
Company and ECM reached a settlement with Vengroup. As part of this settlement ECM acguired the non-controlling
shareholder interests in the holding companies which own or control the mining rights o certain of its Lo Increible
mining properties for consideration of $6.6 million. As part of the transaction to acquire the non-controlling
shareholder interests, the Company also entered inte a two-year consuliing agreemens for total fees of $600,000.
This investment in ECM and its subsidiaries was subsequently written down to § Nit in 2005, as the Company had
previously written off its controlling interest in the related underlying mining assets.

Effective August 19, 2004, the Company acquired, under a plan of arrangement, all of the outstanding shares of El
Callao Mining Corporation {"E} Callac"} not previously owned. As a result of this transaction 0702259 B.C. Ltd., a
successor company to El Callao under the plan of arrangement and a subsequent amalgamation, is now a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Crystallex. As consideration, shareholders of £l Callao (other than Crystallex) received 0.01818
of a Crystallex common share for each of their El Callao shares representing a total obligation to issue 172,975
Crystaltex common shares, The value associated with acquiring these shares was $493,702. This investment was
subsequently written down to $ Nil in 2004, As at December 31, 2007, the Company had issued 164,815 common
shares and is obligated to issue the remaining 8,160 common shares.

INCOME TAXES
The Company did not record a benefit for income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005,
due to the recurrence of operating losses and the Company's determination that it is not more likely than not that
future income tax assets will be realized. The Company recorded a provision for income taxes related to one of its
subsidiaries in Venezuela.

The provision for income taxes reported differs from the amounts computed by applying the cumulative Canadian
federal and provincial income tax rates 1o the loss before tax provision due to the following:

2007 2008 2005

Restated

{Note 11)
Statutory tax rate 35.08% 35.88% 36.12%
Loss before income tax provision $ {30,209,086) $ (35,11B,157) $ (43,472,999)
Expected income taxes recoverable $ {10,5%97,347) $ (12,600,395} $ (15,702,447)
Change in valuation allewance (6,957,710) 9,645,913 8,406,291
Change in substantively enacted tax rates 4,869,757 2,772,385 -
Change in foreign exchange rates {10,060,082) (1,513,694) (951,840}
Neon-deductible items 6,850,578 1,946,169 1,768,547
Reduction in Joss carry forwards 16,026,915 284.0M 6,484,430
Diterence in foreign 1ax rates 110,199 31,623 286,455
Actual income tax provision $ 242,310 5 566,072 } 291,436
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11.

The tax effects of temporary differences that would give rise to significant pertions of the future tax assets and future
tax liabilities at December 31 are as follows:

2007 2006
Restated
{Note §1)
Future income tax assets:

Loss carry forwards and deferred financing fees $ 60,739,199 $ 68083102
Asset retirement obligatians 826,549 411,596
Less: valuation allowance (57,938,069) (64,8595,779)
Future income tax assets 3,627,679 3,598,919

Future income tax liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment {17,870,565) (27,112,020)
Net future income taxes $ (14,242,885) § {23.514,101)

Future income tax assets are recognized to the extent that realization is considered more likely than not. Since the
Company has determined that it is more likely than not that the fuiure income tax assets are not recoverable, the net
future income tax assets have been fully offset by a valuation allowance. The prior years’ presentation has been
amended to conform 1o the current year’s presentation,

The components of the Company’s future income tax balance include a future income tax estimate of 34% of the
carrying value of the Las Cristinas asset recorded in the parent entity for accounting purposes which may not have
deductibility for income tax purposes in the Venezuela Branch in the foreseeable future. The Company recognized
unrealized non-cash foreign currency translation gains of $14,322,229 during the year ended December 31, 2007
{2006: $nil; 2005: $1,442,481). These translation gains result from the translation into U.S. dollars at the end of the
year of the Venezuelan-denominated future income tax liabilities that are recognized in connection with these
expenditures on the Las Cristinas asset. Such currency transiation gains and losses have been recorded in the
determination of net loss.

At December 31, 2007 the Company has the following unused tax losses available for tax purposes:

Country
Year of Expiry Canada Venezuela
2008 H 1,874,000 3 2,191,464
2009 $  45.965,000 ' 265,029
2010 $ 38,962,000 $ 899
2014 $ 17,670,000 $ -
2015 $ 37,152,000 3 -
2026 $ 28335000 $ -
2027 § 22,468,000 $ -

RESTATEMENT OF PRIOR YEARS DUE TO FUTURE INCOME TAXES

In 2007, the Company reviewed its accounting practices in respect af certain expenditures made in connection with
its Venezuela Branch but funded by its Canadian parent entity with respect to Las Cristinas. The Company determined
that such expenditures, previously treated as deductible for tax purposes, that have been capitalized in the Canadian
parent entity are not likely to be deductible neither in Venezuela nor in Canada thereby creating a difference between
their accounting and tax values. The resulting future tax liability is subject to foreign exchange translation gains and
losses at each reporting period when it is re-valued into US dollars.
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11. RESTATEMENT OF PRIOR YEARS DUE TO FUTURE INCOME TAXES (CONTINUED)

The following table summarizes information relating to the restatement of prior years as a result of this review:

Canadian GAAP U.5. Gaap

Cumulative non-deductible expenditures

2006 $ 52,318,966 $ 28,622,554

2005 $ 29,356,965 3 15,660,553

2004 $ 30,048,783 5 63523N
Related Future income tax liabilities

2006 $ 23,514,101 $  14,384.877

2005 $ 16,836,707 3 L7143

2004 $ 13,484,065 $ 3,272,433
Capitalized to Mineral Properties during the year

2006 1 6,677,395 $ 6,677,395

2005 } 4,795,124 $ 4,795,124

2004 $ 3,506,014 $ 3,272,433
Unrealized foreign currency translation gains

2006 $ - H -

2005 1,442,481 350,072

2004 1,995,610 -
Cumulative effect an net loss ] 3,438,091 ] 350,072

As at December 31, 2006

Ax Previgusly

Aeported Adjustment As Restated
Canadian GAAP
Property, plant and equipment $ 256,455,027 $ 26,952,192 $ 283,407,219
Future income taxes % - § 23514001 $ 23514101
Opening Deficit $ (251,467,693) $ 3,438,091 $ (248,029,602)
Net Loss for the Year (35,684,229) - {35,684,225)
Deficit, End of Year % (287,151,922) ] 3,438,091 $ (283,713,831}
U.5. GAAP
Property, plant and equipment $ 195,346,705 4 14,744,949 $ 210,091,654
Future income taxes $ - $ 14,394,877 $ 14,394,877
Shareholders’ Equity $ 134934621 $ 350,072 § 135,284,693

As at December 31, 2005

As Previously

Reported Adjustment As Restated
Canadian GAAP
Property, plant and equipment $ 215,260,043 $ 20,274,801 $ 235,534,844
Future income taxes $ - $ 16,836,707 $ 16,836,707
QOpening Deficit § (206,260,777 $ 1,995,610 $ (204,265,167)
Net Loss for the Year (45,206,916} 1,442,481 (43,764,435}
Deficit, End of Year ¥ {251,467,693) ] 3,438,091 $ {248,029,602)
Net Loss per Share $ (0.23) $ 0.01 3 {0.22)
U.S. GAAP
Property, plant and equipment $ 144,559,985 $ 8,067,557 $ 152,627,542
Future income taxes H - H 7,217,481 $ 1717481
Shareholders' Equity $ 58,772,070 $ 350,072 $ 59,122,142
Net Loss for the Year 3 (41,911,000) 5 350,072 $ (41,560.928)
Net Loss per Share $ (0.22) $ $0.01 $ $(0.21)
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12.

The estimated future income taxes represent a net accounting entry derived from the current lack of deductibility in
the Venezuela Branch of certain expenditures related to Las Cristinas which were funded by the parent Company in
Canada. These costs will be amortized for accounting purposes but may not be for income tax purposes. Accardingly,
the future income taxes represent an undiscounted estimate of the tax effect of this difference, and therefore are not

payable at the present.

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES WITH RESPECT TO CASH FLOWS

2007 2006
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash H 2,157,518 $ 8,492,273
Commercial paper with interest rate of 5% - 20,080,911
Canadian Treasury Bills with interest rate of 2.05% 13,907,685 -
$ 16,065,203 $ 28,573,142
Cash paid during the years ended December 31
2007 2006 2005
For interest $ 9,458,625 H 9,985,572 $ 5,239,726
For income taxes % 385,725 $ 338,353 § 317,656
Investment in property, plant and equipment far the years ended Decembar 31
1007 2006 2005
Restated Restated
{Note 11) {Note 11)
Net book value of property, plant and equipment January 1 $ 283,407,219 $ 235,534,843 § 132,809,013
Net book value of property, plant and equipment December 31 317,179,327 283,407,219 235,534,843
et additions to property, plant and equipment
(after amartization and depletion) during the
year ended December 31 33,772,108 47,872,376 102,725,830
Capitalization of stock compensation (1,524,904} - -
Future income taxes {5,051,011) {6,677,395) (4,795,124)
Amortization and depletion expenses 63,464 1,887,588 3,402,198
Net additions to property, plant and equipment
during the year ended December 31 27,259,657 43,082,569 101,332,904
Changes in working capital related to
property, plant and equipment acguisitions {366,882) 6,705,285 (8,501,600}
Cash investment in property, plant and equipment
during the year ended December 31 $ 26,892,775 § 49,787,854 $ 92,831,304
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12. SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES WITH RESPECT TO CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

13,

Issuance of common shares for cash for the years ended December 31

2007 2006 2008
Cash received from:
Public offerings $  50,7011M § 51,208,985 $ 466,549
Exercise of options 1,210,552 3,651,754 1,053,023
Exercise of warrants 880,880 23,773,054 5,080,357
Issuance of shares under equity
draw down facility before financing costs - 4,317,661 17,751,313
Loan repayment from equity drawdown facility - - {8,459,000)
Issuance of common shares for cash
during the year ended December 31 $ 52,792,543 $ 82,951,454 $ 15,892,242
Significant non-cash transactions for the years ended December 31
2007 2006 2005

Issuance of common shares and warrants for: Settlement of
promissory note 460,900 shares (2006 - 611,300 shares) $ 1,800,000 $ 1,800,000 $ -

Directors’ fees 38,508 shares

{2006 ~ 19,170 shares; 2005 - 65,186 shares) $ 148,000 $ 60,000 $ 190,000
Acquisition of non—controlling interest (2005; 1,467,136 shares) H - $ - $ 3,000,000
Settlement of bank laan (2006: 2,765,841 shares) $ - $ 7,641,266 $ -
Settlement of professional fees (2006: 500,000 warrants) $ - 3 1,365,839 $ -

SEGMENTED INFORMATION

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise about which separate financial information is
available that is evaluated regularly by the chiei operating decision maker, or decision-making group, in deciding how
to allocate resources and in assessing performance. Alt of the Company’s operations are within the mining sector. Due
to geographic and political diversity, the Company’s mining operations are decentralized, whereby mine general
managers are responsible for business results and regional corporate offices provide support to the mines in
addressing local and regional issues. The Company's operations are therefore segmented on a district basis. The
Company’s only preduct is gold, preduced from mines located in Venezuela.

The segments’ accounting policies are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies
except that other expenses, the commodity contract gain/loss and other items are not allocated to the individual
operating segments when determining profit or toss, but rather are attributed to the corporate office.

Geographic information:

Substantially all revenues generated and capital assets held by the Company are in Venezuela, except for long-lead
time capital assets required for the development of Las Cristinas, of which significant amounts are located temporarily
in Houston, U.S.A, Antwerp, Belgium and Cape Town, South Africa.
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14.

Venezuelan Las Cristinas
Corpotate Qperations Deyelapment Tatal

Year ended - December 31, 2007

Mining revenue $ - $ 13,565,167 $ - $ 13,565,167
Mining operations $ - 4(19,628,681) S - $(19,628.681)
Oaepletion, amartization and accretion % (63,454) $  (211,256) L1 - $  {(274.720)
Interest and other income $ 1.094.198 3 - 5 - $ 1,094,198
Interest expense $(12,594,795) §  (414,634) $ - $(13,009,429)
Segment income (loss) ${34,617.618) $ (8,221,090} $ 12,387,312 $ (30,451,398)
Segment assets $ 15,222,923 § 5268472 $318,749,101 $339,240,49¢
Capital expenditures $ - L] - $ 26,892,795 $ 26,892,775
Year ended - December 31, 2006

Mining revenue $ - $ 28,087,764 5 - $ 28,087,764
Mining operations $ - $(26,244,665) % - $1{26,244,665)
Depletion, amortization and accretion $  (701,875) $ (1,783,423} $ - $ (2,485,298)
Interest and other income $ 1,159,586 $ - H - $ 1,159,586
Interest expense ${12,389,335) $ (556,650} $ - $1412,945,985)
Segment loss $434,096,015)  $ (1,588,214% § - ${35,684,229)
Segment assets {(Restated - Note 11) $ 31,536,272 $ 9922076 $283,236,306 $324,694.654
Capital expenditures 3 - ] - $ 49,782,854 § 49,787,854
Yaar ended - Decembaer 31, 2005

Mining revenue 5 - $ 24,989,681 $ - % 24,989,681
Mining operations $ - $(22,117.7968) % - $(22,117,746)
Depletion, amontization and accretion $ (1,048,296} $ (2.696,784) 1 - § (3,745,080)
Interest and other income $ 1,926,435 $ - $ - $ 1,926,425
interest expense $1011,532,146) % 1276,941) 1 - $(11,809,087)
Segment income {loss) (Restated - Note 11} $ (44,468,230} $  {73.686) $ 1,442,481 $(43,764,435)
Segment assets (Restated — Note 11) $ 29,543,350 $ 7,895306 $233,476,342 $270,914,998
Capital expenditures $ 54,51 $ 855,961 $ 91,920,772 $ 92,831,304

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Under the terms of the Las Cristinas Mine Operation Agreement with the Corporacion Venezalana de Guayana dated
September 17, 2002 the Company has undertaken to make all investments necessary to develop and exploit the Las
Cristinas depaosits.

The capital cost of the project was revised to $356 million in November 2007 (previous estimate August 2005 §293
million), of which $102 million has been spent o date. Once construction begins the remaining $254 million will need
10 be spent to complete the project.

The Company is committed to spend approximately $2.8 million to complete certain social projects at Las Cristinas.
Lease agreements

The Company has entered into various operating lease agreements which expire over the next four years. Total rent
expense charged 1o operations under these agreements was $236,222 (2006 - $181,686; 2005 — §178,135).

Minimum lease payments under operating leases in effect through 2011 are as follows:

2008 $ 274,451
2009 74,120
2010 23,681
2011 17,761

L] 390,013
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14,

15.

16.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)
Other

On May 23, 2006 the Company and certain directors and officers were served with a Statement of Claim by an
individual alleging misrepresentation, conspiracy and breach of contract, and claiming damages of approximately
CDN$1,750,000. The Company has fited its Siatement of Defense and believes that there is little likelihood of any
ultimate liability. However, as the outcome of this matter cannot be determined at this time, the Company has made
no provision for this contingency as at December 31, 2007.

in the normal course of business, the Company may enter into contracts that contain commitments to pay amounts
dependent upon future events, Such amounts, if any, are not determinable as yet; consequently, no amounts have
been accrued in the financial statements with respect to these commitments.

RELATED PARTY AND OTHER TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company entered into the following transactions with related and other parties:

a} Paid consulting and underwriting fees of $3,371,257 (2006 - $2,947,156; 2005 - $120.900) to a company
which retains the Chairman of the Company as an employee.

b) Paid consulting fees of $94,038 to a company which retains the Chairman of the Company as a director.

¢) Paid legal fees of $729,901 in 2005 1o a law firm, while a partner of whom was a director of the Company.

The amounts charged to the Company for the services provided have been determined by negotiation among the
parties. These transactions were in the normal course of operations and were measured at the exchange value which
represented the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the refated parties.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's activities expose it to currency risk and liquidity risk. The Company is not exposed to significant credit
risk as payment in full is typically collected at the time of sale or defivery, and other receivables involve counterparties
that are government agencies which do not expose the Company te significant credit risk. The Company is not
exposed to significant cash flow or fair value interest rate risk in respect of its financial instruments.

Currency Risk

The Company has important operatiens in Venezuela, where currently there is an exchange control regime and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk from the exchange rate of the Venezuelan Bolivar relative to the U.S. dollar. Foreign
exchange risk is mainly derived from assets and liabilities shown in Venezuelan Bolivars.

The Company limits its foreign exchange risk by the acquisition of short-term financial instruments and, when
possible, minimizes its Bolivar monetary asset position.

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006 the Company had the following monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies other than the U.S. dollar, shown at their eguivalent amounts in Venezuelan Belivars with its
carrying value in U.5. dollars:

2007 2007 2006 2006

Bs{00D) uss Bs5{000} us §

Monetary assets 23,812,936 4,329,625 13,430,996 6,246,975
Monetary liabilities (86,772,444) {15,776,808) (57,413,604) (26,704,002)
Total net monetary liabilities {62,959,508) {11,447,183) (43,982,608} (20,457,027)
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On January 21, 2003, the Venezuelan government announced the closure of the foreign exchange market in
Venezuela and, on February 5, 2003, the Ministry of Finance and the Central Bank of Venezuela (8CV) began to
publish the legal instruments regulating the exchange control regime, one of which established initial official
exchange rates of Bs 1,596/US$1 (purchase) and Bs 1,600/US$1 (sale). On that same date, the government created
the Commission for the Administration of Foreign Currency (CADIVI} with the task of establishing the detailed rules
and regulations and generally administering the exchange control regime.

Armong other things, one of these legal instruments requires the sale of all incoming currency to BCV and temporarily
suspends all purchases and sales in local currency of securities issued by the Venezuelan government in foreign
currency. BCV now centralizes all currency purchases and sales in the country.

CADIVI has subsequently issued resolutions on a number of requirements in connection with the administration of
the exchange control regime, such as user registration, guidelines for importers and exporters, and the registration of
private-sector foreign debt as of January 22, 2003.

On February 8, 2004, the Ministry of Finance and BCV established new official exchange rates, as from that date, of
Bs 1,915.20/US$1 (purchase) and Bs 1,920/US$1 (sale). On March 2, 2005, the Ministry of Finance and BCV further
modified the exchange rates, as from that date, to Bs 2,144.60/US$1 {purchase) and Bs 2,150/US$1 (sale}.

In October 2005 the Venezuelan gavernment enacted the Currency Exchange Offenses Law, whereby any demand,
offer, purchase or sale of U.S. dollars failing to comply with CADIVI requirements is cansidered illegal. Similarly,
transactions exceeding US$10,000 should be declared to CADIVL. In addition, exporters of goods and services are
required to sell their income from business transactions in foreign currency to BCV. Transactions with securities, as well
as Government Bonds dencminated in U.S. dollars and issued in local currency are exempt. In January 2008 a reform
of the Currency Exchange Offenses Law entered into force. Among the main additional requirements and limitations
introduced are the obligation to indicate the origin of the foreign currency on the import declaration; making it
compulsory for anyone offering goods and services acquired with foreign currency authorized by CADIVI to post
notices to that effect; anyone who quotes the buying, selling or leasing of an asset in foreign currency will be fined
with twice the quoted price, even if the offer is conducted in private; forbids individuals or companies to offer,
publicize or disseminate financia! or stock exchange information on the prices of foreign currency in writing, by
broadcasting it or by audiovisual or any other means.

At December 31, 2007, if the Bolivar had weakened or strengthened by 15% against the U.S. dollar, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax income for the year would have been $1,717,077 lower or higher, respectively, as a
result of the change in the fair value of the Company’s net monetary asset denominated in U.S. dollars.

Liquidity Risk
The Company faces liquidity risk to the extent that it will be unable to setile liabilities as they come due. in order to

manage this risk, management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity reserve on the basis of expected
cash flow. The maturities of the Company's financial iabilities are as follows:

1103 3 Months ta | Year 10

1 Month Months 1 Year 5 Years

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 10,868,261 5 - $ - $ -
Debt - - - 100,000,000
Total $ 10,868,261 5 - $ - $100,000,000
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17.

18.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On February 11, 2008, the Company completed a public offering of 32,890,000 units at CDN$2.10 per unit for gross
proceeds of CON$69,069,000, including 4,290,000 units issuable upon the exercise of the over-allotment option by
the syndicate of underwriters.

Each unit consists of one common share of Crystallex and one-half of one common share purchase warrant. Each
whale warrant entitles the holder to purchase a further common share of Crystallex at an exercise price of CDN$3.00
for a period expiring on the later of: (i) 18 months from the closing date of the offering; and (i) six months following
the permit date, where the permit date is the 45th day fcltowing the receipt by Ceystallex of the Permit.

The Company paid underwriting fees of CDN$4,144,140 of which CDN$2,279,277 were paid to a company which
retains the Chairman of the Company as an employee.

DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CANADIAN AND UNITED STATES GENERALLY ACCEPTED
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

The Company prepares its consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Canada {"Canadian GAAP™) which differ from those principles that the Company would have followed
had its consolidated financial staterents been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America {"U.5. GAAP"). The following adjustments would be required in order to present the
financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

Balance Sheets

The impact of differences between Canadian GAAP and U.S. GAAP on the consolidated balance sheets is as follows:

2007
Canadian w.s,
GAAP Adjustments GAAP
Current assets $  21,355.842 $ - $ 21,355,842
Property, plant and equipment 317,179,327 (60.306,124) (a) 256,873,203
Qther assets 705,327 - 705,327
$ 339240496 $ (60,306,124) $ 278,934,372
Current liabilities $ 11435047 $ - $ 11435047
Asset retirement obligations 1,864,240 - 1,864,240
Long-term debt 83,291,377 - 83,291,377
Future income taxes 14,242,886 (3,564, 788) 10,678,098
Shareholders’ equity 228,406,946 {56,731,336) 171,665.610
$ 339,240,496 $ (60,306,124) $ 278,934,372

2006 {Restated - Nate 11)

Canadia u.s.
GAAP Adjuitments GAAP
Current assets 3 38,181,779 ] - $ 38,181,779
Property, plant and equipment 283,407,219 (73,315,565} (a) 210,091,654
Deferrad financing fees 2,595,627 - 2,595,627
Other 510,029 - 510,029
$ 324,694,654 $  (73,315.565) § 251,379,089
Current liabilities 16,203,423 b1 - $ 16,203,423
Asset retirement abligations 97,167 - 971,167
Long-term debt 84,524,929 - 84,524,929
Future income taxes 23,514,101 {9,119,224) 14,394,877
Shareholders' equity 199,481,034 (64,196,341) 135,284,693
$ 324,694,654 $ (73,315,565) $ 251,379,089
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For the purposes of reporting in accordance with U.S. GAAP, amounts referred to as contributed surplus under
Canadian GAAP are referred 10 as additional paid in capital.

Statements of Operations

The impact of the differences between Canadian GAAP and U.5. GAAP on the net loss for the year would be as

follows:
2007 2006 2005
Restated
{Note t1}
Net loss for the year per Canadian GAAP $ {30,451,396) $  {35,684,229) $ (43,764,435}
Adjustments 10 mineral properties {a) 13,009,439 9,591,736 4,789,861
Changes in fair value of exchangeable partion of bank loan {b) - (8,638,661) -
Accretion of interest on bank loan (b) - (54,064) -
Unamortized deferred financing costs on
exchangeable portion of bank Jaan [19] - (121,405) -
Adjustment to unrealized gain on translation
of future income taxes {c) {5,554,437) - (1,092,409)
Beneficial conversion interest - - {598,000}
Adjustment to amortization of Series 2 Notes discount - - (539,125}
Unamortized deferred financing costs of Series 2 Notes - - (356,820}
Net loss for the year per U.5. GAAP $  (22,996,394) $ (34,906,623) $ (41,560,928)
Net loss per share — hasic and diluted s {0.09) s (0.15) $ {0.21)
Weighted average number of
shares outstanding - basic and diluted 256,668,551 230,229,162 194,729,931

Statements of Cash Flows

The impact of the above differences between Canadian GAAP and U.5. GAAP on the combined statements of cash

flows would be as follows:

2007 2006 2005
Restated
(Note 11}
Cash flows used in operating activities, Canadian GAAP $ (34,309,186} $ (30,675,675} $ (34,252,976}
Adjustments to interest (a) 13,009,439 9,991,736 5,025,761
Adjustment to unrealized gain on translation
of future income taxes {c} (5.554,337) - (1,092,409}
Adjustments to mineral properties - - (235,900}
Cash flows used in operating activities, U.5. GAAP (26,854,184} {21,083,939) (30,555,524)
Cash tlows provided by {used in) investing
activities, Canadian GAAP (26,892,775} (28,464,691) 14,128,449
Adjustments to interest {(a) {13,009,439) (9,591,736} {5,025,761)
Adjustment to unrealized gain on translation
of tuture income taxes (c) 5,554,437 - 1,092,409
Adjustments to mineral praoperties - - 235,500
Cash flows provided by {used in) investing activities, U.5. GAAP (34,347,777} (38,056,427) 10,430,997
Cash flows provided by financing activities,
Canadian and U.5. GAAP 49,215,188 83,643,489 18,427,804
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents during the year (11.986,773) 24,503,123 (1,696,723}
Effects of exchange rate {luctuations on cash and cash equivalents {521,166) - -
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 28,573,142 4,070,049 5,766,742
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 16,065,203 $ 28,573142 H 4,070,019
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18. DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CANADIAN AND UNITED STATES GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING
PRINCIPLES (CONTINUED)

{a) Mineral Properties and Exploration and Development Costs

Under Canadian GAAP, mineral properties, including exploratian, development and acquisition costs, are carried at
cost until the properties to which they relate are placed into production, sold or where management has determined
there to be a permanent impairment in value.

Under U.S. GAAP mineral property expenditures other than acquisition costs are expensed as incurred. Once a final
feasibility study has been completed however, additional costs incurred to bring the mine into production are
capitalized as development costs. Casts incurred to access ore bodies identified in the current mining plan after
production has commenced are considered production costs and are expensed as incurred.

Under Canadian GAAP, the Company has elected to expense interest costs incurred on qualifying mineral properties
in the development stage. Under U.S. GAAP. interest costs of $13,009,439, 39,591,736 and $5,025,761 associated
with the Las Cristinas mineral properties under development have been capitalized in the years ended December 31,
2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The Company previously restated its 2006 and 2005 consolidated financial statements with respect to the
capitalization of interest costs in its audited consolidated financial statements issued on October 22, 2007.

{b) Bank Loan - Exchangeable Portion

In accordance with Canadian GAAP, upon the issuance on December 23, 2005 of the exchangeable portion of the
bank loan, the exchangeable portion was bifurcated between its liability and equity components. The fiability portion
of the debt was measured by determining the carrying amount of the notes by discounting the stream of future
payments of principal and interest at the prevailing market rate for a similar liability that does not have an associated
equity component.

Under U.S. GAAP on issuance, the conversion option contained in the exchangeable portion of the bank loan is
considered 1o be an embedded derivative that is required to be bifurcated and accounted for as a free standing
derivative financia! liability separate from the debt instrument, The Company is required to re-measure the fair value
of the derivative financial liability at each reporting date with changes in fair value recorded in earnings. The difference
between the value of the free standing derivative and the face value of the debt will be accreted over the term of
the debt,

On May 5, 2006, the holder exercised their conversion option and the full value of the debt was settled for shares.

Accordingly, for U.S. GAAP purposes, for the year ended December 31, 2006 an expense of $8,638,661 has been
recorded with respect to the changes in fair value of the embedded derivative, an expense of $54,064 to reflect the
additional accretion expense, and an expense of $121,405 to reflect the unamortized deferred financing costs.

(¢} Adjustment to Unrealized Gain on Translation of Future Income Taxes

tinder Canadian GAAP, the Company recorded unrealized gain on translation of future income taxes of $14,322,225
and $1,442,481 in 2007 and 2005, respectively. Under US GAAP, the unrealized gain recorded on translation of future
income taxes was $8,767,792 and $350,072 in 2007 and 2005, respectively.

{d) Recent accounting pronouncements
Accounting Policies Adopted during the Year

In July 2006, FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes - an interpretation
of FASB Staternent No. 109 (“FIN 48“). FIN 48 provides guidance for recognizing and measuring uncertain tax
positions, as defined in SAS 109, Accounting for Taxes. FIN 48 prescribes a threshold condition that a tax position
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must meet far any of the benefit of the uncertain tax position to be recognized in the financial statements. Guidance
is also provided regarding de-recognition, classification and disclosure of these unceriain tax positions. FIN 48 was
effective January 1, 2007. The application of this standard did not have any impact on the Company's U.5. GAAP
balance sheet or U.S. GAAP net loss.

Future accounting pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, "Fair Value Measurements, ” (SFAS No. 157). SFAS No. 157 defines
fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles, and expands
disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 applies under other accounting pronouncements that
require or permit fair value measurements, and therefore does not require any new fair value measurements. SFAS
Mo, 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 (January 1, 2008 for the Company). In
February 2008, the FASB amended SFAS No. 157 to exclude leasing transactions and to delay the effective date by
one year for nonfinancial assets and liabilities that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements
on a nonrecurring basis. The Company is in the process of determining the effect, if any, the adoption of SFAS No.
157 will have on its financial statements.

in February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities,
including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115" {SFAS No. 159). SFAS No. 159 provides all entities with an
option to report selected financial assets and liabilities at fair value. SFAS No. 159 is effective for financial statements
issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 (January 1, 2008 for the Company). The Company is in the
process of determining the effect, if any, the adoption of SFAS No. 159 will have on its financial statements,
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MINERAL RESERVES AND RESOURCES

Mineral Reserves

Crystallex’s Share December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006
Tonnes Gold Grade Cunces of Tonnes Gold Grade Qunges of
{Doo} {g/t} Gald Cantained (o (g/t) Gold Contained

Las Cristinas
Proven Reserves 112,761 1.24 4,483,000 50,613 1.2% 2,031,000
Probable Reserves 351,601 1.10 12,379,000 327,833 1.14 11,975,000
Total Gold Reserves 454,362 1.13 16,862,000 378,446 1.15 14,006,000

Mineral Resources

| Crystallex’s Share December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006

Tonnes Gold Grade Qunces of Tonnes Gold Grade Cunces af

{000 (g/t] Gold Contained (000) {git) Gold Contained

Las Cristinas Measured & Indicated 629,383 1.03 20,761,000 500,657 1.1 17,661,000
Torni {underground mine}

Ingicated Resources - - - 13 18.3 B.000

La Victoria Indicated Resources 2,422 45 349,000 2,422 4.5 349,000

Total Gold Resources 631,805 1.03 21,110,000 503,092 1.1 18,018,000

Mineral reserves are based on a US$550 par ounce gold price and cut-oft grades ranging from Q.33 grams per tenne to 0.57 grams of gold per tonne
depending on the mineral type.

The Company employs industry standards and methods for estimating mineral reserves and resources. However, reported
mineral reserves and resources are anly estimates and no assurance can be given that the indicated quantities of goid will
be produced. Mineral reserve and resource estimates may require revision (either up or down) based upon actual
production experience. Market fluctuations in the price of metals, as well as increased production costs of reduced
recovery rates, may render certain mineral reserves and resources uneconomic and may ultimately result in a restatement
of reserves and/or resources. Moreover, short-term operating factors relating to the mineral reserves and resources, such
as the need for sequential development of ore bodies and the processing of new or difierent ore grades, may adversely
affect the Company's prefitability in any particular accounting period.

Notes to Reserves and Resources

o Minerat reserves ("reserves”) and mineral resources (“resources”) have been estimated at December 31, 2007 in
accordance with the standards of the Canadian Institute of Mining and Metallurgy as adopted by the Canadian
Securities Administrators in National Instrument 43-101 {“NI 43-101). The 2007 Las Cristinas resource and reserve
estimates have been prepared by Mine Development Associates ("MDA") and are compliant with NI 43-101,

»  The Canadian Institute of Mining and Metallurgy defines three resource categories {Measured, Indicated and Inferred)
and two categories of reserve (Proven and Probable). Measured resaurces have the highest level of predictive
confidence, and Inferred the lowest level of confidence. Unlike proven and probable reserves, resources, of all
categories, do not have demonstrated economic viability. A reserve is that portion of 3 Measured or Indicated resource
that has been demonstrated 1o be economically extractable,
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+  For the United States reporting purposes, under the Securities and Exchange Commission, (the "SEC") Industry Guide
7 applies different standards in order 1o classify mineralization as a reserve. The SEC permits mining companies, in
their filings with the SEC, 1o disclose only those mineral deposits that a company can economically and legally extraci
or produce. A full feasibility study is required in order to classify mineralization as a reserve, In addition, the primary
environmental analysis document is required to be submitted to the governmental authorities for reserve
classification. We use certain terms in this document, such as “measured resources” and “indicated resources.” We
advise U.S. investors that while those terms are recognized and required by Canadian regulations, the U.S. Securities
and Exchange Commission does not recognize them. U.S. investors are cautioned not to assume that any part or all
of mineral resources in these categories will ever be converted into reserves. U.S. investors are urged to consider
closely the disclosure in our Annual Report on Form 40-F,

*  Reserves are included in resources.

Key Reserve Assumptions

In calculating mineral reserves, cut-off grades are established using the Company’s long-term gold price, the average
metallurgical recovery rates and estimated production costs over the life of the related operation.

The following table indicates the gold price and cut-off grade used in caiculating reserves at Crystallex’s properties. Also
identified is the Qualified Person' responsible for calculating Crystallex’s reserves.

Gold Price Cut-Off Grade
(USS/oz) g/t Qualified Person’
Las Cristinas $550 0.33t0 0.57 Steven Ristorcelli, P.Geo.

and Thomas Dyer, PEng.,
Mine Development Associates

' A Qualified Person, as defined in National Instrument 43-101, is an individual who is an engineer or geoscientist with at least five years
of experience in mineral exploration, mine development or operation, mineral project assessment, or any combination of these; has
experience relevant to the subject matter of the mineral project and the technical report, and is a member in good standing of a
professional associatien,
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DEFINITIONS

The following definitions reflect Canadian Institute of Mining, Metallurgy and Petroleum standards as required by
National Instrument 43-101.

Mineral Reserves

A Minerai Reserve is the economically mineable part of a Measured or Indicated Mineral Resource demonstrated by at
least a preliminary feasibility study. This study must include adequate information on mining, processing, metaliurgical,
economic and other relevant factars that demonstrate, at the time of reporting, that economic extraction can be
justified. A Mineral Reserve includes diluting materials and allowances for losses that may occur when the material is
mined. Mineral Reserves are sub-divided in order of increasing confidence into Probable Mineral Reserves and Proven
Mineral Reserves. A Probable Mineral Reserve has a lower level of confidence than a Proven Mineral Reserve.

Proven Mineral Reserve

A Proven Mineral Reserve is the economically mineable part of a Measured Mineral Resource demanstrated by at least
a preliminary feasibility study. This study must include adequate information on mining, processing, metallurgical,
economic and other relevant factors that demonstrate, at the time of reporting, that economic extraction is justified.

Prcbable Mineral Reserve

A Probable Mineral Reserve is the economically mineable part of an Indicated, and in some circumsiances, a Measured
Mineral Resource, demonstrated by at least a preliminary feasibility study. This study must include adequate information
on mining, processing, metallurgical, econemic and other relevant factors that demonstrate, at the time of reporting,
that economic extraction can be justified.

Mineral Resources

A Mineral Resource is a concentration or occurrence of natural, solid, inorganic or fossilized organic material in or on
the Earth's crust in such form and quantity and of such a grade or quality that it has reasonable prospects for economic
extraction. The location, quantity, grade, geological characteristics and continuity of a Mineral Resource are known,
estimated or interpreted from specific geological evidence and knowledge. Mineral Resources are sub-divided, in order
of increasing geological confidence, into Inferred, Indicated and Measured categories.

Measured Mineral Resource

A Measured Mineral Resource is that part of a Minerat Resource for which quantity, grade or quality, densities, shape,
and physical characteristics are so well established that they can be estimated with confidence sufficient to allow the
appropriate application of technical and economic parameters to support praduction planning and evaluation of the
economic viability of the deposit. The estimate is based on detailed and reliable exploration, sampling and testing
information gathered through appropriate technigues from locations such as outcrops, trenches, pits, workings and
drill holes that are spaced closely enough to confirm both geclogical and grade continuity.

Indicated Mineral Resource

An Indicated Mineral Resource is that part of a Mineral Resource for which quantity, grade or quality, densities, shape,
and physical characteristics can be estimated with a level of confidence sufficient to allow the appropriate application
of technical and economic parameters to support mine planning and evaluation of the economic viability of the deposit.
The estimate is based on detailed and reliable exploration and testing information gathered through appropriate
techniques from locations such as outcrops, trenches, pits, workings and drill holes that are spaced closely enough for
geological and grade continuity to be reasonably assumed.

Inferred Mineral Resource

An Inferred Mineral Resource is that part of a Mineral Resource for which quantity and grade or quality can be estimated
on the basis of geclogical evidence and limited sampling and reasonable assumed, but not verified, geological and grade
continuity. The estimate is based on limited information and sampting gathered through appropriate technigues from
locations such as outcrops, trenches, pits, workings and drili holes.
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SHAREHOLDERS OF RECOROD

As at April 16, 2008, there were 551 registered sharehelders of Crystallex International Corporation. This number excludes
shareholders holding stock under nominee security positons.

SHARE PRICES

The Compary's common stock is traded on the Toronto Stock Exchange ("TSX*) and the American Stock Exchange
{"Amex”) under the symbol KRY. Quarterly high and low stock prices on the TSX and Amex for 2006 and 2005 were:

2007 2006

1 ! N _
v Ames iﬁ!_quarthnr 3rd Quarter  2nd Quarter Ist Quartar 4ih Quanber i 3rd Quarter 2nd Quarter 15t Quarter
1
I
High (U.5.%} 3.5¢ 4.33 5.25 4.18 ! 4.04 343 6.07 4.1
' tow {U.S.3) 1.87 2.32 3.57 2.22 i 2.64 2.50 2.75 21
. 007 ) 2006 '
TSA 4th Qulrthe_r 3rd Quarter Ind Quarter 15t Quarter B 5![\ puir:hcr 3rd %ner 2nd Quarter 15t Guarter
High (C$) 3.37 4.54 5.70 q.82 4.56 3.80 6.92 4.77

Low {C4) 1.86 3 3.88 2.64 2.97 2.84 3.10 2.55
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